
Page 1 of 3 

   

City of Galena, Illinois 

 

 

AGENDA 
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 15, 2019 
 

6:30 P.M. – CITY HALL 101 GREEN STREET  
  

ITEM                                                            DESCRIPTION 
 

19C‐0400. 
 
Call to Order by Presiding Officer 

19C‐0401. Roll Call 

19C‐0402. Establishment of Quorum 
19C‐0403. Pledge of Allegiance 
19C‐0404. Reports of Standing Committees 
19C‐0405. Citizens Comments 

 Not to exceed 15 minutes as an agenda item 

 Not more than 3 minutes per speaker 

  
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

None. 
 

LIQUOR COMMISSION 
 

None. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA CA19‐21 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

19C‐0406. 
 
Approval of the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of September 23, 
2019  

4‐8  

 
19C‐0407. 

  
Approval of Budget Amendment BA20‐06 for Waterworks Sidewalk Construction 
and Gear Street Project Costs 

9‐10  

 
19C‐0408. 

 
Approval of Galena Balloon Glow on the East and West Side Levee (Ground 
Conditions Permitting) on Friday, October 25 from 6:00 P.M. to 9:00 P.M.  

11‐12 

 
19C‐0409. 

 
Approval of Revised Site Boundaries for School Section Archery Deer Hunting 
Site   

13‐14 

Page 1 of 101



Page 2 of 3 

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 

 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

17C‐0322. 
 
Discussion and Possible Action on an Appeal of a Decision by the Historic 
Preservation Commission to Deny an Application by Carle and Robert Egger, 309 
Franklin Street, to Paint their House    

 
15‐57 

 
19C‐0390. 

   
Second Reading and Possible Approval of an Ordinance to Rezone 624 Spring 
Street from Low Density Residential District to Neighborhood Commercial 
District 

 
58 

 
19C‐0392. 

 
Second Reading and Possible Approval of an Ordinance Amending Article 0, 
Section §154.015 – Definitions and Article 4, Table 154.403.1 – Permitted Land 
Uses and Section §154.406 – Detailed Land Use Descriptions of the Code of 
Ordinances (Adult‐Use Recreational Cannabis Zoning Ordinance) 

 
59‐78 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

19C‐0410. 
 
Discussion and Possible Action on the Purchase of a New Dump Truck and New 
Equipment for the Truck 

 
79 

 
19C‐0411. 

  
First Reading of an Ordinance Authorizing the Sale of Municipally Owned 
Personal Property (Sale of Pickup Truck and Dump Truck)  

 
80‐81 

 
19C‐0412. 

  
Discussion and Possible Action on East Side Water Project and West Side Water 
Project, Including Possible Water Rate Increases 

 
82‐88 

 
19C‐0413. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on Amendment #1 to Professional Services 
Agreement with Community Funding and Planning Services for East Side Water 
Project Loan Application 

 
89‐91 

 
19C‐0414. 

 
First Reading of an Ordinance Authorizing the Execution of the IMLRMA 
Minimum/Maximum Contribution Agreement 

 
92 
 

 
19C‐0415. 

 
Warrants 

93‐101 

19C‐0416. Alderpersons’ Comments   
19C‐0417. City Administrator’s Report    
19C‐0418. Mayor’s Report   
19C‐0418. Adjournment   

Page 2 of 101



Page 3 of 3 

CALENDAR INFORMATION  

 

BOARD/COMMITTEE  DATE  TIME  PLACE 

City Council    Mon. Oct. 28  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

Historic Preservation Comm.  Thurs. Nov. 7  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

Zoning Board of Appeals  Wed. Nov. 13  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

 
Please view the full City of Galena Calendar at www.cityofgalena.org  

Posted: Thursday, October 10, 2019 at 4:00 p.m.    Posted By: 

Page 3 of 101



Regular Board Meeting  23 September 2019 
 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 23 SEPTEMBER 2019 
 

19C-0381 – CALL TO ORDER 
  
Mayor Renner called the regular meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in the Board Chambers at 101 
Green Street on 23 September 2019.  
 
19C-0382 – ROLL CALL 
 
Upon roll call, the following members were present:  Allendorf, Bernstein, Hahn, Kieffer, McCoy, 
Westemeier, Renner 
 
19C-0383 – ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM 
 
Mayor Renner announced a quorum of Board members present to conduct City business.   
 
19C-0384 – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge was recited.    
 
19C-0385 - REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
 
No reports.   
 
19C-0386 – CITIZENS COMMENTS 
 
Tom Richardson, Galena, IL – Richardson voiced concern with a problem in Industrial Park.  He 
submitted a letter and literature.   
 
Rose Nobel, Galena Country – Nobel spoke specifically to the report on parking.  She found the 
report to be a great report and the information was insightful.  She noted the report talks about 
marketing and coordinating way finding sings.  She advised Galena Country would be happy to 
help produce a marketing plan when it comes to the parking scenario.  They can produce one for 
visitors, residents and lodging.  Noble urged the council to use their services.   
 
Jae Hezlep, Coatsworth Senior Center – Hezlep thanked the council for their consideration on 
the request from the Coatsworth Senior Center.   
 
John Schu, Galena – Shu advised he is totally against the recent approval of the cannabis, 
noting communities in California and Colorado who allowed it in the beginning have since banned 
it.  He urged the Council to reconsider the ordinance.     
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA CA19-20 
 
19C-0387 – APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 
SEPTEMBER 9, 2019 
 
19C-0388 – ACCEPTANCE OF AUGUST 2019 FINANCIAL REPORT 
 
Motion:    Kieffer moved, seconded by Hahn, to approve Consent Agenda, CA19-20.    
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Bernstein, Hahn, Kieffer, McCoy, Westemeier, Allendorf, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            

Page 4 of 101



Regular Board Meeting  23 September 2019 
 

  The motion carried.  
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
19C-0322 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON AN APPEAL OF A DECISION BY THE 
HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION TO DENY AN APPLICATION BY CARLE AND 
ROBERT EGGER, 309 FRANKLIN STREET, TO PAINT THEIR HOUSE 
 
This item was pulled from the agenda.   
 
19C-0353 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON A REQUEST BY COATSWORTH 
BUILDING RESIDENTS TO MODIFY PARKING ZONES IN THE 100 BLOCK OF SOUTH MAIN 
STREET 
 
Motion:    Bernstein moved, seconded by Kieffer, to approve the request by Coatsworth building 
residents to modify parking zones in the 100 block of South Main Street amended to include 
changing the loading zone to a 24/7 zone with council review in six months.      
 
Council discussed and agreed to make the loading zone a permanent zone 24/7.  Council will 
review it in six months.    
 
Amended 
Motion:    Hahn moved, seconded by Kieffer, to amend the motion to include changing the 
loading zone to 24/7 with council review in six months.   
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Amended 
Motion 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Kieffer, Allendorf, Bernstein, Hahn 
  NAYS:  McCoy, Westemeier 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
Main 
Motion 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Hahn, Kieffer, McCoy, Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein,  
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried. 
 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
19C-0389 – ACTIVITY UPDATE FROM NWIL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 
Emily Legal updated the council on the following: 
 

 Enterprise Zone Awards 
 Honeywell Plant Closing 
 Talent Pipeline Management 
 Bi-State Port Study 
 Small Business Administration Visit 
 New Executive Director, Emily Legel 
 New Partnership with CEDA 
 Build It * Grow It 
 Build it * Grow It:  Entrepreneurial Mastermind Forum 

Page 5 of 101



Regular Board Meeting  23 September 2019 
 

 2020 Build It * Grow It 
 Hour of Code 
 New Board Members 
 Outgoing Board Members 
 Upcoming:  NWILED Quarterly Report 
 Sign-Up 
 NWILED Board Meeting –October 9th from 4:30 – 6 PM at the NWILED office in Hanover. 

 
19C-0390 – FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE TO REZONE 624 SPRING STREET FROM 
LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT TO NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL DISTRICT 
 
Motion:    Allendorf moved, seconded by McCoy, to approve item 19C-0390, the first reading of 
an ordinance to rezone 624 Spring Street from Low Density Residential District to Neighborhood 
Commercial District.    
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  McCoy, Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein, Hahn, Kieffer, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried. 
 
19C-0391 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON ZONING CALENDAR NO. 19A-04, A 
TEXT AMENDMENT TO THE ZONING ORDINANCE TO ALLOW ADULT-USE CANNABIS 
LAND USES IN SELECT ZONING DISTRICTS 
 
Motion:    Allendorf moved, seconded by Westemeier, to approve item 19C-0391, Zoning 
Calendar No. 19A-04, a text amendment to the Zoning Ordinance to allow adult-use cannabis 
land uses in select zoning districts.    
 
Discussion:  Bernstein stated she appreciates the comments made by Mr. Schu.  She noted the 
ordinance is not bringing marijuana to Galena.  It is already here, and everybody knows it.  This is 
a way to have some control over it.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein, Hahn, Kieffer, McCoy 
  NAYS:  Renner 
            
  The motion carried. 
 
19C-0392 – FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ARTICLE 0, SECTION 154.015 
– DEFINITIONS AND ARTICLE 4, TABLE 154.403.1 – PERMITTED LAND USES AND 
SECTION 154.406 – DETAILED LAND USE DESCRIPTIONS OF THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES (ADULT-USE RECREATIONAL CANNABIS ZONING ORDINANCE) 
 
Motion:    Allendorf moved, seconded by Kieffer, to approve item 19C-0392, the first reading of 
an ordinance amending Article 0, Section 154.015 – Definitions and Article 4, Table 154.403.1 – 
Permitted Land Uses and Section 154.406 – Detailed Land Use Descriptions of the Code of 
Ordinances (Adult-use Recreational Cannabis Zoning Ordinance).   
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Allendorf, Bernstein, Hahn, Kieffer, McCoy, Westemeier,  
  NAYS:  Renner 
            
  The motion carried. 
 

Page 6 of 101



Regular Board Meeting  23 September 2019 
 

19C-0393 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON RENEWAL OF EMPLOYEE HEALTH, 
DENTAL, LIFE, DISABILITY, VISION INSURANCE POLICIES, AND HEALTH SAVINGS 
ACCOUNT DISTRIBUTIONS 
 
Motion:    Kieffer moved, seconded by Hahn, to approve the renewal of employee health, dental, 
life, disability, vision insurance policies, and health savings account distributions.   
 
Discussion:  McCoy stated he would prefer to see the insurance handled by a local agent if 
possible.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Bernstein, Hahn, Kieffer, Westemeier, Allendorf, Renner 
  NAYS:  McCoy 
            
  The motion carried. 
 
 
19C-0394 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON OPTIONS FOR DOWNTOWN 
PARKING IMPROVEMENTS 
 
Motion:    Hahn moved, seconded by Kieffer, to postpone item 19C-0394.   
 
Discussion: Bernstein felt the report was extremely well done with lots of information and lots of 
options.  She would like to see us go through it and pick out what can be done most easily in 
order to make some improvements before getting into something more comprehensive.   
 
Kieffer stated he would be in favor of paid parking everywhere.  Hahn agreed.  Hahn feels it still 
resorts back to that most of the downtown parking is being taken up by people working in the 
downtown.  Hahn was in favor of paid parking kiosks as well as raising the lots from $5 to $10.    
 
Allendorf stated he would like to see staff make recommendations on the lowest cost options as 
well as what would generate revenue.  He would like to progressively tackle this with the lowest 
cost options and those that generate money but won’t negatively impact tourism.   
 
Allendorf recommended, if we go with paid kiosks, that a sticker program be instituted for 
resident’s, so the expense is born by the tourism industry.   
 
Westemeier feels the cheapest way to go is to hire a part-time parking control officer.  He also 
likes the idea of putting a disk in each stall to determine where the most parking would be.  He 
was opposed to allowing residents to park for free, as most of the employees downtown would be 
residents.   
 
Council agreed the objective is to create parking and create opportunity to build more parking in 
the downtown.   
 
Bernstein suggested encouraging other alternative means of transportation, such as bicycles, as 
well.   
 
19C-0395 – WARRANTS 
 
Motion:  Bernstein moved, seconded by Hahn, to approve the Warrants as presented, 19C-0395.     
 
Discussion:  None.  
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  McCoy, Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein, Hahn, Kieffer, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  

Page 7 of 101



Regular Board Meeting  23 September 2019 
 

 
19C-0396 – ALDERPERSONS’ COMMENTS 
 
Thank you – Bernstein thanked Mayor Renner for the proclamation for the electric vehicle event.   
 
Thank you – Hahn thanked staff for their work on the parking program.  A lot of work went into it.  
It has a lot of good stuff and is a lot to think about.   
 
19C-0397 – CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 
Grant Park Committee – Moran gave the Grant Park Committee a thumbs up on getting the park 
looking nice and well maintained.   
 
Glass Recycling – Moran reported we continue to move forward on glass recycling.  The 
Dubuque Metro Solid Waste has accepted responsibility for glass recycling.  We should have a 
depository soon.  The dumpster has been donated by the Galena Territory Association.  It is 
being repaired and repainted.  It will be placed in the Piggly Wiggly parking lot.  We are just 
waiting for Dubuque to finalize.   
 
Paving – Moran reported paving is going well.  Jail Hill is complete and West Street will be done 
tomorrow.  Paving should be complete by the October 4th.   
 
19C-0398 – MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
Mayor Renner thanked staff and the Downtown Business Association for the parking survey.  He 
noted the next meeting will be held on Tuesday, October 15, 2019 due to Columbus Day.   
 
19C-0399 – ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion:   Kieffer moved, seconded by Hahn to adjourn.   
 
Discussion:   None. 
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein, Hahn, Kieffer, McCoy, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
   
The meeting adjourned at 7:29 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
Mary Beth Hyde 
City Clerk 
 
 

Page 8 of 101



City of Galena, Illinois

Budget Amendment No. 20‐06  

Fiscal Year 2019‐20  

Item No. Line Item Title Line Item No. Beginning Balance  Increase             Decrease      
Ending          

Balance

1 Sidewalk Replacement 01.41.830.01 $                                          ‐    $                                    9,900  $                9,900 

2 Misc. Revenue Public Works (General Fund) 01.389.3 $                                   7,500  $                                    9,900  $              17,400 

3 Wastewater Treatment Equipment Replacement 52.43.850.15 $                           19,500.00  $                                    3,495  $              22,995 

4 Wastewater Treatment Equipment Replacement 52.43.850.15 $                           22,995.00  $                                    4,125  $              27,120 

5 Wastewater Treatment Equipment Replacement 52.43.850.15 $                           27,120.00  $                                  14,475  $              41,595 

6 Transfer from General Fund (to Motor Fuel Tax) 01.99.999.26 $                                          ‐    $                                251,100  $            251,100 

7 Transfer into Motor Fuel Tax (from General Fund) 15.399.0 $                                          ‐    $                                251,100  $            251,100 

8 Gear Street Project 15.41.850.00 $                                 76,000  $                                857,100  $            933,100 

Justification:
Item No.    Description

1

2

3

4

5

6‐8

Effect of Budget Amendment on Budget:

Approved Budget After Budget After

Budget Previous Amendments Proposed Amendment

4,015,455$           4,015,455$                           4,025,355$                             

4,000,630$           4,000,630$                           4,261,630$                             

14,825$                14,825$                                 (236,275)$                              

5,621,560$           5,700,060$                           5,951,160$                             

5,416,895$           5,723,885$                           6,603,080$                             

204,665$              (23,825)$                               (651,920)$                              

219,490$               (9,000)$                                  (888,195)$                              

Approved by City Council on ____________________

Mark Moran

Budget Officer

Fund

General Fund Revenues

General Fund Expenses

General Surplus/(Deficit)

Other Fund Revenues

Other Fund Expenses 

This is the revenue line item for the sidewalk replacement reimbursement.

Other Fund Surplus/(Deficit)

Total Budget Surplus/(Deficit)

Jo Daviess County leases the Waterworks Building from the City.  The sidewalk on the Park Avenue side of the building was damaged and required replacement.  The County 

agreed to reimburse the City for the cost of the work based on the 2019 approved unit prices for sidewalk replacement.  The total cost was $9,892.82.  This project was not 

anticipated during budgeting.  The proposed budget amendment includes new revenue of $9,900 (the reimbursement from the County) and the new expense of $9,900.  The 

amendment will result in no net change to the overall condition of the budget. 

In August, the City transitioned to a new contract operator for our water and sewer systems.  The new contractor, US Water, has undertaken an extensive and detailed review of 

the operations and equipment for the utilities.  Several equipment issues have been discovered and repairs have been made or scheduled.  Expenses less than $3,000 are 

considered maintenance and repair and are the responsibility of US Water.  Expenses of $3,000 or more are the responsibility of the City.  This budget amendment includes three 

sewer system repairs that exceed the $3,000 threshold.  The first is the replacement of a variable frequency drive for an aerator in one of the two oxidation ditches.  A refurbished 

drive was selected for $3,495, a considerable savings over a new drive. 

The second repair at the wastewater plant was the replacement of the variable frequency drive on the belt filter press.  The cost of the repair was $4,124.20.

The third repair was the replacement of a submersible pump at the influent pump station at the wastewater plant.  This purchase was approved by the council in October 2018 

but the pump was not received until the current budget year.  The cost of the pump was $14,475.  All three repair/replacement costs are expenses for the Equipment 

Replacement line item in the Sewer Fund.  Funds for the expenses would be from the Sewer Fund fund balance.  The projected year‐end fund balance after the budget 

amendments is $1.18 million.

The Gear Street project is complete except for a few punch list items.  An invoice is on the October 15 list of warrants to pay Fischer Excavating $239,805.30. This represents the 

remainder of the full contract amount minus a retainage of 2% or $59,951.33.  The current payment plus the retainage totals $299,756.63.  Just over $251,000 of this total 

represents changes and additional quantities that the initial payment from IDOT to the City will not cover.  When the punch list is complete, the City intends to submit to IDOT a 

request for reimbursement of the added expenses.  In order to pay the current invoice and the final invoice (retainage), this budget amendment is proposed. The amendment 

would transfer $251,100 from the General Fund to the Motor Fuel Tax Fund.  An additional $606,000 would be added to the Gear Street expense line item in the Motor Fuel Tax 

Fund to cover project costs already incurred/paid this fiscal year.  The revenue to cover these costs was received from IDOT in the previous fiscal year. 

Page 9 of 101



City of Galena, Illinois

Summary of Budget Amendments

Fiscal Year 2019‐2020

Date Line Item Title Line Item No.
Beginning 

Balance
 Increase          Decrease

Ending         

Balance

Amendment 

Number 

Reference 

Number1

07‐08‐19 Dog Park Donations  17.383.8  $                        ‐     $                   ‐     $                   ‐    BA20‐01  

07‐08‐19 Dog Park Construction 17.52.890.01 ‐$                       ‐$                  ‐$                  BA20‐01  

07‐22‐19 Water Sampling Grant (Revenue) 52.389.1  $                        ‐    $           28,500   $           28,500  BA20‐02 1108

07‐22‐19 Water Sampling Grant (Expense) 52.43.549.02  $                        ‐    $           28,500   $           28,500  BA20‐02 1109

07‐22‐19 Gear Street Water Main 51.42.836.07  $                        ‐    $           92,290   $           92,290  BA20‐02 1110

07‐22‐19 Gear Street Sewer Main 52.43.850.16  $                        ‐    $         113,000   $         113,000  BA20‐02 1105

08‐12‐19 Rec Park Parking Grant 17.349.3  $                        ‐    $           50,000   $           50,000  BA20‐03 1106

08‐12‐19 Rec Park Parking Grant 17.52.870.05  $                        ‐    $           50,000   $           50,000  BA20‐03 1107

08‐26‐19 Galena Foundation Project 17.52.890.00  $                14,500   $             9,060   $           23,560  BA20‐04 1111

09‐09‐19 Water Tower Site Improvement (Tower Elimination Study) 51.42.831.0  $                  5,000   $           10,300   $           15,300  BA20‐05 1112

09‐09‐19 Cemetery Park 17.52.870.05  $                        ‐    $             3,840   $             3,840  BA20‐05 1113

10‐15‐19 Sidewalk Replacement 01.41.830.01  $                        ‐    $             9,900   $             9,900  BA20‐06

10‐15‐19 Misc. Revenue Public Works (General Fund) 01.389.3  $                  7,500   $             9,900   $           17,400  BA20‐06

10‐15‐19 Wastewater Treatment Equipment Replacement 52.43.850.15  $          19,500.00   $             3,495   $           22,995  BA20‐06

10‐15‐19 Wastewater Treatment Equipment Replacement 52.43.850.15  $          22,995.00   $             4,125   $           27,120  BA20‐06

10‐15‐19 Wastewater Treatment Equipment Replacement 52.43.850.15  $          27,120.00   $           14,475   $           41,595  BA20‐06

10‐15‐19 Transfer from General Fund (to Motor Fuel Tax) 01.99.999.26  $                        ‐    $         251,100   $         251,100  BA20‐06

10‐15‐19 Transfer into Motor Fuel Tax (from General Fund) 15.399.0  $                        ‐    $         251,100   $         251,100  BA20‐06

10‐15‐19 Gear Street Project 15.41.850.00  $                76,000   $         857,100   $         933,100  BA20‐06

1  Reference Number confirms that the budget amendment has been updated to the General Ledger.

Updated: 10/9/2019

Page 10 of 101



Page 11 of 101



Page 12 of 101



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    October 9, 2019 

RE:    School Section Hunting Site 
 
 
In August, you approved 11 hunting sites for the second year of the Galena Archery Deer 
Hunting Program.  The applicants of the School Section hunting site, Bob Stocks and Phil 
Karberg, have requested a revision of the boundary for their site.  Two homes within 100 yards 
of the property are now condemned and cannot be occupied.   
 
The program guidelines restrict hunting as follows, “No hunting is permitted within 100 yards of 
any residence, church, or occupied structure without first obtaining permission of the owner or 
tenant of the dwelling or occupied structure.” 
 
The property at 1106 N. Ridge Street has not been occupied for more than one year and is 
condemned.  The property at 1023 N. West Street is being used for fire training and will be 
demolished soon.   
 
I am attaching a revised map for the School Section hunting site that shows the new site 
boundary.  If the new site boundary is approved by the city council, I will notify nearby property 
owners of the change. 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions.  Thank you.  
 
 
 

 

Page 13 of 101



Page 14 of 101



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    September 17, 2019 

RE:    Robert Egger Certificate of Appropriateness Appeal 
 
 
The September 23 meeting agenda includes an item of unfinished business to consider an 
appeal by Robert Egger of a decision by the Historic Preservation Commission.  Egger is 
requesting to have his appeal of the denial of exterior house paint colors brought back to the 
city council.  The appeal was postponed indefinitely by the city council in August 2017.   
 
On August 8, 2019, Egger wrote:    
 
Hello, my name is Bob Egger and I am trying to have my case placed on the agenda of the 
nearest possible City Council meeting. 
 
My appeal was placed in abeyance so that I could try to reach a compromise with the city and 
the head of the Historic Preservation Board. During the course of these talks a color was found 
that the Historic Board said was " close to what we're looking for. " 
 
The color was denied and discussions continued. Now I wish to renew my appeal to the City 
Council and the Mayor with the "compromise " color scheme. The new color is "charcoal dust" 
from Dunn‐Edwards and is as close to grey as possible while still having a hint of color.  
I am asking for your support for bringing my appeal out of abeyance and getting this 
matter resolved as soon as possible. I cannot go back to the Historic Board with the same 
(charcoal dust) color that was brought up at my last meeting with them in order to create a new 
appeal.  
 
Since there was no limit placed on the abeyance and it took months to complete the 
compromise attempt I feel it would be fair to take this appeal out of abeyance at this time. 
Please consider this. 
Thank you,  
 
Bob Egger 
 

 

Page 15 of 101



 

2 of 2 

The subject of the appeal dates to 2015 when the City initiated code compliance actions. Here 
is the chronology of activity for this property: 
 

 August 18, 2015: Galena Building Department issued notice to Eggers explaining the City 
requires him to paint his house to comply with our building appearance codes 

 August 18, 2016: Historic Preservation Commission (HPC) denied his proposed paint 
colors 

 September 1, 2016: HPC denied new proposed paint colors 

 September 26, 2016: City Council denied his appeal of paint colors 

 July 6, 2017: HPC denied new proposed paint colors 

 August 14, 2017: City Council postponed new appeal indefinitely and suggested Eggers 
attempt to find colors agreeable to the HPC 

 September 21, 2017: HPC denied another new set of colors 

 March 6, 2019: Galena Building Department issued notice to Eggers explaining the City 
requires him to paint his house to comply with our building appearance codes 

 June 12, 2019: Final notice issued to Eggers by Building Department.  Issuance of tickets 
is next step. 

 
Any council member may bring Egger’s appeal back to the city council agenda for consideration.  
I was recently contacted by one council member who asked to bring the appeal back to the 
agenda.   
 
On the following page are the paint colors that Egger proposed after his appeal before the city 
council was postponed indefinitely.  The colors were denied by the HPC at the September 21, 
2017 meeting.  I am also attaching the packet of information from the original appeal to the city 
council on August 14, 2017. 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions.   
 

 
 

Page 16 of 101



Page 17 of 101



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
 

Memorandum 
 
TO:    The Honorable Mayor Renner, City Council & Mark Moran 
 
FROM:    Jonathan Miller, Building Official     
 
DATE:    August 1, 2017                             
 
RE:     309 Franklin St. Appeal of Historic Preservation Commission Ruling 
 
On July 28, 2017, Carle and Robert Egger were aggrieved by the rulings of the Galena Historic Preservation 
Commission, and have decided to appeal the decision to the City Council.  Their application to paint their home was 
again denied by the HPC.  The Eggers have filed the proper application for appeal, which is attached to this memo.   
Along with the Application for Appeal of the Historic Preservation Commission Ruling, the applicants have provided 
some additional information that they feel will assist in their appeal. 
 
Background 
 
Certificate of Appropriateness July 6, 2017 
 
At the July 6, 2017 meeting of the HPC, Robert and Carle Egger requested to paint their home at 309 Franklin St. 
the new colors of Deep Silver, Thundercloud Grey, Violet Stone, Blue Orchid, and Sweet Daphne.  This request was 
denied.  The following minutes from the July 6, 2017 meeting reflect the decision.   
 
17HPC073:  309 FRANKLIN STREET. 
Discussion and possible action on a request by Carle and Robert Egger applicant and owners, to paint their house 
with the new colors of Deep Silver, Thundercloud Grey, Violet Stone, Blue Orchid, and Sweet Daphne. 
 
Ron Leinen, spoke for Carle and Robert Egger, he passed out information: 

 That the style of this house is a Queen Anne with a bay window. 

 Passed around a piece of the trim with a colored dot on it. Leinen stated that this dot is a lavender color. 

 Shared with the board that the new chosen colors are:  Violet Stone for the main body, blue orchid, deep 
silver, thundercloud gray. 

 
The HPC Board asked: 

 What the body of the color would be and Leinen stated Violet Stone, Blue Orchid would be painted on 
panels around the windows. 

 
Dennerlein stated that he thought that this house would be considered a hybrid because it is a mix of Queen Anne.  
 
 
MOTION:  Albaugh moved seconded by Gehrts to deny as presented. 
 

Page 18 of 101



2 of 2 

Discussion of the motion: None. 
 
Roll call was: 
  Dennerlein  Yes 
  Albaugh  Yes 
  Wienen Yes 
  Gehrts  Yes 
  Johnson  Yes 
  Brown    Yes 
 
The motion carried. 
 
Powers of the City Council 
 
The City Council may reverse or affirm, wholly or partly, or may modify or amend the order, requirement, decision, 
or determination appealed from, to the extent and in the manner that the City Council may decide to be fitting and 
proper on the premises and to that end the City Council shall also have the powers of the officer from whom the 
appeal was taken. 
 
The Concurring vote of a majority of the City Council shall be necessary to reverse any order, requirement, decision, 
or determination of the Building Official or to decide in favor of the applicant.   
 

Page 19 of 101



Page 20 of 101



Page 21 of 101



Page 22 of 101



Page 23 of 101



Page 24 of 101



We are proposing to paint our house at 309 Franklin Street in a historically appropriate color scheme 

using Benjamin Moore colors as follows: 

Body of the house/clapboards: 2069‐40 violet stone 

Trim: 2124‐40 thundercloud grey 

Front porch: 2124‐30 deep silver 

Porch ceiling: robin’s egg blue (matched to the shell found in our front garden this year) 

Shakes/gable: 529 sweet daphne (green) 

Panels next to bay windows: 2069‐50 blue orchid 

Additionally, these colors will be applied as needed to bring out the details on the house and porch. 

 

The Short Case 

1: The minutes from the 18 August, 2016 meeting of the Galena Historic Preservation Commission 

(GHPC) state “This color is appropriate to a Queen Anne, which are generally painted ladies.” {emphasis 

mine} At this point in the meeting the discussion was about color 2069‐40 Violet Stone. These minutes 

also state that “This house is not a Queen Anne.” (exhibit #1) 

2: The Ball State Study commissioned by the City of Galena and archived by the Ruskin ARC Group 

(Exhibit #2), NPS Form 10900 (Exhibit #3), Darius Bryjka of the Illinois Historic Preservation Commission 

(conversation in October, 2016), the Department of the Interior’s National Register of Historic Places 

(conversation with Barbara Wyatt) and Roger Reed, Historian ‐ National Register and Historic Landmarks 

Programs (Exhibit #4)ALL say ours is a Queen Anne house.  

3: The GHPC has already approved these colors but refuse to issue a certificate of appropriateness. 

 

[As a logic problem:  

(If the premises are true the conclusion MUST be true.) 

p1: Violet is appropriate for a Queen Anne house 

p2: Highly credible sources identify this as a Queen Anne house  

c: Violet Stone is appropriate for this house 

Therefore: A certificate of appropriateness cannot be denied.] 

 

 

 

 

Page 25 of 101



The Full Argument 

“House is not a Queen Anne Painted Lady…. without turrets and some of the more traditional late 

Victorian features, it does not fall into a mold that would necessary apply to a color scheme.” (GHPC 

minutes 1 September, 2016)(Exhibit #5) 

“Painted Lady” is a contemporary term referring to a house in a Victorian Era style, painted in three or 

more colors, nothing more.i   

Architectural styles do not have tightly defined style parameters without all of which they cannot be 

defined as such. Queen Anne style is a collection of details which create a Queen Anne house. These 

details include “Steeply pitched, irregular roof shapes; dominant, front‐facing gable; patterned shingles, 

bay windows, picturesque massing (see Gothic Revival), polychromatic and decorative ornamentation; 

partial or full‐width porches of one story; multiple gables and dormers; occasional towers and turrets, 

rounded or square. Differing wall textures are their “hallmark”.”ii In the book The Building of Galena: An 

Architectural Legacy there are illustrations of sixteen Queen Anne houses, only three have towers or 

turrets. iii 

 

Gaudy and bright colors were not widely popular and are generally not appropriate for such structures 

(GHPC minutes, 1 September, 2016)(Exhibit #5) 

Gaudy  

Adj.  having too many bright colors: (Cambridge English Dictionary) 

 

Dictionary.com also defines gaudy as “ostentatiously ornamented”.  

 

Ostentatious ornamentation is an attribute of Victorian, and especially Queen Anne, architecture. 

 

  
Bright 

Brightness in paint colors is expressed in light reflective value (LRV). The light reflective value of white is 

100. The LRV of our brightest color is 50, half as bright as white.iv The houses on both sides of ours are 

white. 

 
In his book Victorian Exterior Decoration Roger Mossv suggests that when choosing colors to paint a 

Queen Anne house one may choose more colors than when choosing them for a simpler style of 

architecture.  

These colors are by definition, not gaudy. The colors are neither bright nor are there too many of them. 

 

 

Page 26 of 101



“These colors were not used during the years 1875‐1900.” (GHPC minutes 1 September, 2016)(Exhibit 

#5) 

Lavender was a popular color between 1875‐1900 because it was one of Queen Victoria’s most often 

worn colors.vi Synthetic cobalt magnesium phosphate pigment was first created in 1858.vii Cobalt violet 

was lightfast, making it ideal for exterior decorative use. This pigment is still in use today. One of the 

arguments presented to refute our presentation of a contemporaneous paint chart (exhibit #6) showing 

that lavender was available as a house paint at this meeting was that Galena was a frontier town and 

that premixed paint might’ve been available in big cities but wasn’t available on the frontier. There are 

several reasons to question this statement. Firstly, we have positive evidence of lavender’s presence on 

OUR house, having found a deep shade of lavender on it while scraping loose paint.viii Secondly, Galena 

wasn’t a frontier town in the 1880s, when this house was built. It was the endpoint of shipping on the 

Mississippi River and the largest city in Illinois at the time.ix Premixed paint was easily available by train 

or riverboat from anywhere in the country during those years.x  

 

“Closely related hues were used on the architectural elements of trim. Brown, olives, dark blue, ochres, 

grays and other rich warm colors highlighted homes built in the later 19th century, especially those in the 

Queen Anne style. Several shades of color in the same family or of subtly contrasting hues would serve to 

accent various architectural elements.” (GHPC minutes, 1 September, 2016)(Exhibit #5) 

Warm colors were preferred by homeowners in the High Victorian Era.xi Lavender is a warm color.xii 

National Park Service guidelines do not demand that a house be painted in colors which can be 

documented to have been on the structure,xiii however, there IS evidence that deep lavender was 

applied to our home at an early point in its lifespan.xiv (Exhibit 6) There was also a suggestion made that 

there could never have been a lavender or purple house in Galena. This suggestion is insupportable, a 

mala fides argument at its core. There is currently a purple house in Galena, at 1004 Park Ave.xv This is 

not a secret to anyone who drives east on the highway 20 bridge in Galena. (Exhibit #8) 

 

“Also, in accordance to the recommendations of the HPC, the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for 

Historic Preservation Projects says that it is not recommended to repaint a house with colors that cannot 

be documented through research and investigation to be appropriate to the building and the 

neighborhood.” 

The last part "and the neighborhood." is a fabrication not found in the text of the National Park Service’s 

standards. The rest comes from...  

  

"STANDARDS FOR RECONSTRUCTION AND GUIDELINES FOR RECONSTRUCTING HISTORIC BUILDINGS"xvi  

...which is a much more stringent set of standards only used for museum level restoration. There is no 

reason to use these standards because our house does not meet the historical significance level 

required for use of these standards.xvii  

 

Page 27 of 101



This GHPC statement is a misapplication of the most rigorous standards required of historically 
significant structures, standards to which even the most historically significant structures in the Galena 
district have not been held. Documentation of the original colors of a structure IS sometimes 
undertaken to restore museum quality or uniquely valuable houses. Such documentation plans normally 
include scientific research used for determination of the contemporaneous coatings, pigments and 
techniques as well as a determination of the exact age and placement of each color. These actions are 
performed by an architectural finishes specialist who retrieves the samples from the structure in 
question, uses specialized treatments to mitigate the aging process of the paint, analyzes the samples in 
a laboratory, and prepares an extremely detailed report, including color notations and samples. All of 
this study and investigation costs many thousands of dollars, often as much or more than the actual 
painting of the structure. These standards have not been required of any other structure within the 
historic district, despite much higher levels of historic significance.  

Arbitrarily demanding this level of investment to gain approval of a color which is (in their own words) 

appropriate to this structure is an abuse of discretion. 

 

 

“There are many other colors to choose from other than these colors.”(GHPC minutes, 1 Sept, 2016)          

(Exhibit #5) 

 

This statement is ridiculous on its face. Of course there are many other colors to choose from, including 

the many colors on the former formulary which were not recommended for exterior use by any 

contemporary paint manufacturer. Of the 66 colors included nearly one third of them were either 

obsolete or not recommended for exterior use.xviii This argument could be easily used to argue against 

the obsolete formulary. There are many other colors to choose from, other than those on the former 

formulary.xix 

 

“This would detract from the neighborhood.”(GHPC minutes, 1 Sept,2016)(Exhibit #5) 

I've been told that this means our colors would detract from the other historic buildings in the 
neighborhood. This is a poor argument if the purpose of the historic board is to encourage historical 
accuracy. Our house is surrounded by inappropriately colored white or pastel houses and brick or stone 
buildings with black or white trim. It would be nearly impossible not to "detract" from those buildings 
with any period appropriate color. The only historically significant building in the neighborhood is the 
seminary at Bench and Franklin which is Galena brick with black trim. Again, any color would "detract" 
from that.  

 

 

Page 28 of 101



In our appeal of the decision of the GHPC to the city council discussion centered on ”…concern for 
setting a precedent if the city were to allow the colors that are not recommended colors approved by 
the HPC.” (letter to us from Jonathan Miller, 1 Nov, 2016) 

This rationale effectively negates any possibility of a genuine appeal. If the city council will only agree to 

approve colors on the former formulary, which do not require approval by the GHPC, how is it possible 

to gain approval of any of the hundreds of colors which may be appropriate but were not on the 

obsoletexx former formulary? If I can demonstrate that the paint on my house was a color that was not 

on the former formulary would I be denied a request to paint it a color that was original to it? This is the 

exact opposite of what the NPS guidelines suggest. The building official has refused to hear even an 

informal suggestion regarding the shade of lavender that was located on the underside of the trim on 

my house, paint which has been hidden from view for many decades, claiming the color is greyxxi and 

that it’s possible that the piece was not really from my house. I am thereby being accused of falsifying 

evidence by the very same people who have presented zero evidence of their own standing beyond, 

“we said so.”  

 

Any person might prefer one color over another but when that person has power over another person 

they must relinquish their preferences and deal with facts alone. We are requesting that you review the 

many pieces of evidence we have presented here and order the Building Official to issue a certificate of 

appropriateness allowing us to paint our Queen Anne Victorian house in these era and style appropriate 

colors. 

 

 

   

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 29 of 101



                                                            
i In American architecture, painted ladies are Victorian and Edwardian houses and buildings painted in three or 

more colors that embellish or enhance their architectural details. The term was first used for San Francisco 

Victorian houses by writers Elizabeth Pomada and Michael Larsen in their 1978 book Painted Ladies ‐ San 

Francisco's Resplendent Victorians. https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Painted_ladies 

ii https://architecturestyles.org/queen‐anne/ 
iii The Building of Galena: An Architectural Legacy, written and illustrated by Carl H Johnson, Jr pages 141‐148 
iv LRVs accessed from various locations at BenjaminMoore.com: Sweet Daphne 50, Blue Orchid 50, Thundercloud 

Grey 50, Deep Silver 29, Violet Stone 30. 

v Page 36. Moss is a widely recognized expert in the field of exterior decoration and architecture. This book, and his 
others, were recommended to us by Barbara Wyatt of the National Register of Historic Places. This book was also 
used by the GHPC as a reference in the writing of their Preservation Guidebook. 
vi Violet and it's variations were popular among Queen Victoria and her contemporaries soon after the 

invention of mauvine and cobalt magnesium phosphate pigments in the late 1850s. Garfield, S. (2000). 

Mauve: How One Man Invented a Colour That Changed the World. Faber and Faber, London, UK.  

vii http://www.webexhibits.org/pigments/indiv/history/coviolet.html 
viii See photograph exhibit 7 
ix Galena Historic Preservation Guidebook, page 1 
x VED page 15 
xi GHPG page 37 
xii Devoe page 21 
xiii VED pages 7 & 8. 
xiv See photograph, exhibit 8 
xv Photograph of 1004 Park 
xvi https://www.nps.gov/tps/standards/four‐treatments/standguide/rehab/rehab_wood.htm  
xvii "When a contemporary depiction is required to understand and interpret a property's historic value (including 
the re‐creation of missing components in a historic district or site); when no other property with the same 
associative value has survived; and when sufficient historical documentation exists to ensure an accurate 
reproduction, Reconstruction may be considered as a treatment. Prior to undertaking work, a documentation plan 
for Reconstruction should be developed." https://www.nps.gov/tps/standards/four‐
treatments/standguide/reconstruct/reconstruct_exterior.htm 
xviii Eleven of the former formulary colors are obsolete or discontinued, three additional colors have been replaced 
by the manufacturer with very similar colors & six colors are recommended for interior only use by the same 
manufacturer, Sherwin Williams  
xix There are more than 1500 colors in the Sherwin Williams system as of 4 June, 2017. 
xx The former formulary was assembled in 1987 with color chips being added several years ago. Many of these 
colors are appropriate to earlier types of architecture, but inappropriate to late Victorian color schemes. 
Professional scholarship regarding paint color use has advanced in the thirty years since these colors were 
collected by the amateur historians who wrote the Galena Historic Preservation Guidelines. 
xxi Exhibit 7 Piece removed from front porch of the house on 14 Sept, 2016  
 

 

Page 30 of 101



                                                                                                                                                                                                

 

EXHIBIT #2 

 

 

309 Franklin St Galena, Illinois USA  
VIEW SUMMARY DOWNLOAD SURVEY FORM  

Basics 

Resource Category: 

Building 

Resource Type: 

domestic building 

Location 

Address: 

309 Franklin St 

City: 

Galena 

County: 

Jo Daviess 

State/Province/Region: 

Illinois 

Zip/Postal Code: 

61036 

Country: 

USA 

Other Address or Location Information: 

Parcel/Tax number or land unit: 

22-100-319-00 

Visible from Public Road? 

Page 31 of 101



                                                                                                                                                                                                
Yes 

Historical Information 

Historic name: 

House 

Current name: 

House 

Construction Date (range/estimated): 

1880-1889 

Construction Date Certainty: 

approximate 

Known Construction Date: 

1880 

Historical Summary: 

Extant Status: 

Not Demolished 

Architectural Style and Form 

Plan/Footprint Shape: 

L 

Building Form or Plan Type (core plan): 

Style, Primary: 

Queen Anne 

Style, Secondary: 

Notes on architectural style, form, distinguishing features: 

Bay window 

Architectural Elements and Features 

Number of Stories: 

2.5 

Bays: 

Page 32 of 101



                                                                                                                                                                                                

Structural System: 

Foundation: 

Not Visible 

Roof Configuration: 

Cross gable 

Roof Material 

asphalt shingles 

Exterior Wall Material (primary): 

wood clapboard/siding 

Window remarks: 

Windows are original or historic wood 1/1 double-or- single hung, fixed, with molding, decorative 
colored glass. 

Porch description, characteristics, details: 

The porch is original or historic, L-Inset; Wood materials; Half-Hipped roof; Turned Spindles. 

Primary entryway: 

Doors are original or historic wood glazed with molding. 

Function and Use 

Historic Function: 

Domestic: Single Dwelling 

Present Function: 

Domestic: Single Dwelling 

Function remarks: 

Listed, Designated, or Protected Status 

Listed at the national level? 

Individually Listed: No 
Contributes to a District: Yes 
Landmark: No  

 

 

Page 33 of 101



                                                                                                                                                                                                

Date, name, remarks: 

Galena Historic District 

Designated at State/Province level? 

Individually Listed: No 
Contributes to a District: No 
Landmark: No  

Date, name, remarks: 

Designated Locally? 

Individually Listed: No 
Contributes to a District: No 
Landmark: No  

Date, name, remarks: 

Protected by ordinance or regulation?: 

Area(s) of Significance 

Architecture  
Character of modifications: 

Slightly Altered 

General Condition: 

Good 

Additions?: 

Nature of additions: 

Endangered / Threatened 

General Remarks: 

Molding over/around doors or windows, cornice returns, decorative shingles. 

Custom / Extra Information 

Contributes to NHL District with period of significance 1820-1900: 

Yes 

Contributes to NHL District with period of significance 1820-1960: 

Yes 

 

Page 34 of 101



                                                                                                                                                                                                

Imported image from Ball State 

Survey  Imported image from 
Ball State Survey 

Located in 

 Historic Resources of Galena, Illinois 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 35 of 101



                                                                                                                                                                                                

EXHIBIT #3 

Page 36 of 101



                                                                                                                                                                                                

 

Page 37 of 101



                                                                                                                                                                                                

Page 38 of 101



                                                                                                                                                                                                

Page 39 of 101



                                                                                                                                                                                                

 
 

Page 40 of 101



                                                                                                                                                                                                

EXHIBIT #4 
 
 
Dear Mr. Egger, 
 
Thank you for your inquiry about the architectural style of your house.  In my opinion, the house 
is a very good example of a small vernacular interpretation of the Queen Anne style.  While it is 
true that most architectural histories will uses examples of homes with large porches, distinctive 
corner towers, and other elaborate features such as oriel windows, smaller houses,such as yours, 
can also exhibit characteristics of the style. 
 
The two-story bay window with a very prominent gable roof substitutes here as a kind of poor-
man's picturesque tower.  It is ornamented with alternating clapboards and fish-scale shingles, 
and with equally characteristic window trim.  The fixed attic window and the window next to the 
entrance, are (and was so-called in the 19th century),"Queen Anne sash".  The small porch is 
engaged to the bay window and has typical Queen Anne turned posts, filigree, and spindle work 
(derived from medieval English furniture).  That all this is built on to the front of an otherwise plain 
building does not prevent it from being a good example of style normally associated with grander 
dwellings. 
 
I hope you find this helpful. 
 
 
 
 
Roger G. Reed, Historian 
National Register and National Historic Landmarks Programs 
1201 Eye Street NW 
Washington, D.C. 20008 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 41 of 101



                                                                                                                                                                                                
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT #6 

COLOR PALETTE  
The Victorian palette is the most varied of the historic palettes, with the vibrancy and excitement 
of the paint colors matching the intricacy of details. In the mid-1800s, when Italianate and 
Second Empire Victorian houses started dotting America, paint colors were muted and earthy, 
owing to their natural pigments. Reds and browns, for instance, were derived from ferric oxides. 
By the 1880s, when the exuberant Queen Anne style became popular, the advent of synthetic 
pigments allowed for vivid blues, greens, purples and yellows. Also common were multi-hue 
schemes that celebrated the style's diverse architectural details, such as turned porch spindles and 
fish-scale shingles under the eaves.  

 

DEA158 Northern Territory  DEA150 Scarlet Past  

 

DE6007 Old-Fashioned Purple  

 

DE5095 Victorian Rouge  DE5093 Rose Reminder  

 

DE5961 Tinted Iris  

 

DE5773 Stone Silver  DE5654 Fresh Thyme  

 

DE5486 Tropical Moss  

 

DE5454 Sullen Gold  DE5572 Sage Leaves  

 

DE6271 Elemental Green  

 

DE5271 Ginger Spice  DE5397 Radiant Sunrise  

 

DE5450 Sugar Cookie  

 

DE5452 Gold Gleam  DE5253 Macaroon Cream  

 

DE6029 Mother of Pearl  

Page 42 of 101



                                                                                                                                                                                                

 

DE5745 Barrier Reef  DE5795 Spirit Mountain  

 

DE5867 Blue Chip  

 

DE5907 Twilight Twinkle  DEA136 Beautiful Blue  

 

DEA135 Deep Ocean  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 43 of 101



                                                                                                                                                                                                
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXIBIT #7 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 44 of 101



                                                                                                                                                                                                
 
 
 
 

EXIBIT #8

 

Page 45 of 101



Page 46 of 101



Page 47 of 101



Page 48 of 101



Page 49 of 101



Page 50 of 101



Page 51 of 101



Page 52 of 101



Page 53 of 101



Page 54 of 101



Page 55 of 101



Page 56 of 101



Page 57 of 101



 Ordinance #O-19-___   
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING 
THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF GALENA 

______________________________________________________________________   
 

 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Galena, Jo Daviess County, Illinois as 
follows: 
 
SECTION I:  The official Zoning Map of the City of Galena shall hereby be amended to change 
the zoning on approximately 0.92 acres, Parcel: 22-101-016-00, N Part of E ½ of Lot 1, N Part of 
W 180’ of Lot 2, Lots 1, 2 and N 17’ of Lot 3 in the Subdivision of the West ½ of Lot 1, Block 59, 
Original Lots of Galena, Galena, Jo Daviess County, Illinois, from Low Density Residential District 
to Neighborhood Commercial District. 
 
SECTION II: All other provisions of the Zoning Ordinance and the Zoning Map shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
SECTION III:  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION IV:  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect within ten (10) days of its passage 
and legal publication. 
 
SECTION V:  Passed on this __th day of ________________, A.D. 2019, in open Council. 
 
 
AYES:       NAYS: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________                                   ____________________________   
Terry Renner, Mayor     Mary Beth Hyde, City Clerk 

Page 58 of 101



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, P.O. Box 310, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050     •     Facsimile: 815-777-3083     •     www.cityofgalena.org 

 
MEMORANDUM 

TO:  Honorable Mayor Renner, City Council and City Administrator 

FROM: Matt Oldenburg, Zoning Administrator 

DATE:  September 18, 2019 

RE: Cal. No. 19A-04, Applicant: City of Galena, 101 Green Street, Galena, IL 61036.  
Request for Text Amendment to Zoning Code of Ordinances to allow Adult-Use 
Cannabis Land Uses in select zoning districts. 

 
Summary: 
 
The imminent legalization of Adult-Use Cannabis by the State requires action by the City to 
create provisions for the various cannabis-related activities and business types.  The City 
Council, after two discussions, directed me to initiate a text amendment to roll-out the ordinances 
for Adult-Use Cannabis Businesses under the Zoning Code of Ordinances as provided by the 
State. 
 
In a nutshell, the Illinois Cannabis Regulation and Tax Act is 471 pages long with very explicit 
and deliberate language to regulate the administration and operations of Adult-Use Cannabis 
businesses.  The Act will sequentially allow these businesses in multiple phases over the next 
few years.  Essentially, existing Medical Cannabis companies will claim State licenses in the 
initial phase; followed-by Conditional Adult-Use Cannabis licenses with preference going to 
candidates under a Social Equity program; and then lastly licenses open to everyone else who 
qualify. 
 
The City must not create ordinances more restrictive than the Statute; but, may regulate through 
the Zoning Ordinance with regard to land use regulations, distance requirements from areas such 
as residential districts and schools / day care facilities.  I’ve included the local ordinance 
provisions below from the Act for your reference. 
 
The proposed ordinance is drafted from a recommended model ordinance provided by the 
Illinois Municipal League. 
 
A map of the areas prohibited by the proposed ordinance is included for your visual reference. 
 
At their meeting on September 11th, the ZBA recommended approval to the City Council for this 
request. 
 
I will be available for any questions. 
 

Page 59 of 101



2 of 3 

(410 ILCS 705/55-25)  
    Sec. 55-25. Local ordinances. Unless otherwise provided under this 
Act or otherwise in accordance with State law: 
        (1) A unit of local government, including a home rule  

     

unit or any non-home rule county within the unincorporated 
territory of the county, may enact reasonable zoning ordinances or 
resolutions, not in conflict with this Act or rules adopted 
pursuant to this Act, regulating cannabis business establishments. 
No unit of local government, including a home rule unit or any non-
home rule county within the unincorporated territory of the county, 
may prohibit home cultivation or unreasonably prohibit use of 
cannabis authorized by this Act. 

 

        (2) A unit of local government, including a home rule  

     

unit or any non-home rule county within the unincorporated 
territory of the county, may enact ordinances or rules not in 
conflict with this Act or with rules adopted pursuant to this Act 
governing the time, place, manner, and number of cannabis business 
establishment operations, including minimum distance limitations 
between cannabis business establishments and locations it deems 
sensitive, including colleges and universities, through the use of 
conditional use permits. A unit of local government, including a 
home rule unit, may establish civil penalties for violation of an 
ordinance or rules governing the time, place, and manner of 
operation of a cannabis business establishment or a conditional use 
permit in the jurisdiction of the unit of local government. No unit 
of local government, including a home rule unit or non-home rule 
county within an unincorporated territory of the county, may 
unreasonably restrict the time, place, manner, and number of 
cannabis business establishment operations authorized by this Act. 

 

        (3) A unit of local government, including a home rule  

     

unit, or any non-home rule county within the unincorporated 
territory of the county may regulate the on-premises consumption of 
cannabis at or in a cannabis business establishment within its 
jurisdiction in a manner consistent with this Act. A cannabis 
business establishment or other entity authorized or permitted by a 
unit of local government to allow on-site consumption shall not be 
deemed a public place within the meaning of the Smoke Free Illinois 
Act. 

 

        (4) A unit of local government, including a home rule  

     

unit or any non-home rule county within the unincorporated 
territory of the county, may not regulate the activities described 
in paragraph (1), (2), or (3) in a manner more restrictive than the 
regulation of those activities by the State under this Act. This 
Section is a limitation under subsection (i) of Section 6 of 
Article VII of the Illinois Constitution on the concurrent exercise 
by home rule units of powers and functions exercised by the State. 

 

        (5) A unit of local government, including a home rule  

     
unit or any non-home rule county within the unincorporated 
territory of the county, may enact ordinances to prohibit or 
significantly limit a cannabis business establishment's location. 

 

(Source: P.A. 101-27, eff. 6-25-19.) 
 
 
 

Page 60 of 101



3 of 3 

Approval Criteria & Recommendation for Text Amendment: 
 
In order to maintain internal consistency within this code and on the zoning map, proposed amendments to 
the text and zoning map must be consistent with the purposes stated herein. 

In determining whether the proposed amendment shall be approved, the following factors shall be 
considered: 

               (1)     Whether the existing text or zoning designation was in error at the time of adoption;   

               (2)     Whether there has been a change of character in the area or throughout the city due to 
installation of public facilities, other zone changes, new growth trends, deterioration, development 
transitions, etc.;  

               (3)     Whether the proposed rezoning is compatible with the surrounding area and defining 
characteristics of the proposed zoning district or whether there may be adverse impacts on the capacity or 
safety of the portion of street network influenced by the rezoning, parking problems, or environmental 
impacts that the new zone may generate such as excessive storm water runoff, water, air or noise 
pollution, excessive nighttime lighting, or other nuisances;   

               (4)     Whether the proposal is in conformance with and in furtherance of the implementation of 
the goals and policies of the Comprehensive Plan, other adopted plans, and the policies, intents and 
requirements of this code, and other city regulations and guidelines;   

               (5)     Whether adequate public facilities and services are available or will be made available 
concurrent with the projected impacts of development in the proposed zone;  

               (6)     Whether there is an adequate supply of land available in the subject area and the 
surrounding community to accommodate the zoning and community needs; or 

               (7)     Whether there is a need in the community for the proposal and whether there will be 
benefits derived by the community or area by the proposed rezoning.   

The Zoning Administrator and Zoning Board of Appeals shall make recommendations and the City 
Council shall take final action. 

          (1)     When the Zoning Board of Appeals or City Council deems it necessary or expedient, 
additional property in the zoning district may be considered for a zoning change provided that this 
additional property is also addressed in the public hearing notice, in accordance with § 154.919(F). 

          (2)     In the event of a written protest against a proposed amendment signed and 
acknowledged by the owners of 20% of the frontage proposed to be altered or by the owners of 
20% of the frontage immediately adjoining or across the alley or rear line therefrom or by the 
owners of 20% of the frontage directly opposite the frontage proposed to be altered as to such 
regulations or zoning district and field with the City Clerk, such amendment shall not be passed 
except by the favorable vote of two-thirds of all of the selected members of the City Council. 

 

Page 61 of 101



Cal. No. 19A-04 1 
 

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
 

DETERMINATION & RECOMMENDATION TO THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF GALENA 

 
REGARDING 

 
CALENDAR NUMBER:  Cal. No. 19A-04 
 
APPLICATION BY:  City of Galena, 101 Green Street, Galena, IL 61036 
 
FOR: Request for Text Amendment to Zoning Code of Ordinances 

to allow Adult-Use Cannabis Land Uses in select zoning 
districts. 

 
PROCEDURES 
 
Pursuant to law, a public hearing was held by the Galena Zoning Board of Appeals regarding this 
matter on September 11, 2019.  The hearing was advertised in an edition of the Galena Gazette, in 
a quarter-page sized ad, that was available to the general public between 15 and 30 days prior to 
the hearing.  They were invited to testify if they so desired.  A quorum of the Board was present 
at the hearing in which the subject application and materials were reviewed and all persons were 
heard who desired to testify. 
 
NATURE OF APPLICATION 
 
The imminent legalization of Adult-Use Cannabis by the State requires action by the City to 
create provisions for the various cannabis-related activities and business types.  The City 
Council, after two discussions, directed to initiate a text amendment to roll-out the ordinances for 
Adult-Use Cannabis Businesses under the Zoning Code of Ordinances as provided by the State. 
 
The Illinois Cannabis Regulation and Tax Act is 471 pages long with very explicit and deliberate 
language to regulate the administration and operations of Adult-Use Cannabis businesses.  The 
Act will sequentially allow these businesses in multiple phases over the next few years.  
Essentially, existing Medical Cannabis companies will claim State licenses in the initial phase; 
followed-by Conditional Adult-Use Cannabis licenses with preference going to candidates under 
a Social Equity program; and then lastly licenses open to everyone else who qualify. 
 
The City must not create ordinances more restrictive than the Statute; but, may regulate through 
the Zoning Ordinance with regard to land use regulations, distance requirements from areas such 
as residential districts and schools / day care facilities.   
 
The proposed ordinance is drafted from a recommended model ordinance provided by the 
Illinois Municipal League. 
 

Page 62 of 101



Cal. No. 19A-04 2 
 

At their meeting on September 11th, the ZBA recommended approval to the City Council for this 
request. 
 
PUBLIC SUPPORT AND/OR OBJECTIONS 
 
Testimony presented in favor of the request: 
 
§ Matt Oldenburg, Zoning Administrator, presented for the city.  Oldenburg said over the 

past month the city council discussed whether to allow Adult Use Cannabis as a result of the 
Illinois Cannabis Regulation and Tax Act.  The state will phase in these businesses.  In 2020 
existing Medical Cannabis companies will be able to claim state licenses in the initial phase.  
In 2021 Conditional Adult Use Cannabis licenses will be issued with preference going to 
candidates under a Social Equity program.  Finally, in 2022 the licenses will be open to 
anyone else who qualifies.  The Illinois Municipal League crafted a model ordinance which 
they sent out to municipalities.  We took that information and formed it to our regulations.  
The council wants to make provisions to allow it in the city.   
 
The first section of tonight’s proposal is in the definitions including growing facilities, 
dispensaries and manufacturing type activities.   
 
The second section is the table of permitted land uses.  First are agricultural uses which 
include cultivation centers and craft growing facilities allowed by Special Use Permit only in 
limited ag and three industrial districts. Next are commercial uses of dispensing which would 
be allowed by SUP only in the downtown commercial district and the three industrial 
districts.  Finally, the industrial uses which involve infusing operations, processing 
operations and transportation operations which would only be allowed in the three industrial 
districts.  Dispensing organizations could be co-located with industrial uses.   
 
The detailed land use regulations have all the detailed regulations for each type of land use 
and was based on the model ordinance.  There is a recurring theme running through this.  
Generally, there is a 250-foot requirement from any residentially zoned district and a 1000-
foot requirement from any school, day care or preschool.  A map was developed showing the 
areas where any of this activity would be prohibited.  There are other layers involved with 
the state tax act such as no adult cannabis facilities can be located within 1500 feet of each 
other.  This is also overlain with the city’s zoning districts to further define locations.  
Additionally, there are parking requirements specified in the land uses.    
 
Rosenthal asked about parking.  No other businesses in the downtown area are required to 
have parking.     
 
Oldenburg said the parking requirement is exempt in the downtown district or if there is a 
change of use to an existing building.  All operations would have to show compliance with 
the state act.    
 
Baranski said the only two aspects that can be regulated by the city are the parking and 
distance requirements. 

Page 63 of 101



Cal. No. 19A-04 3 
 

 
Oldenburg said the state act for local ordinance describes what the city’s powers are – we can 
prohibit it completely, regulate how close they are to each other while still honoring the 
1500-foot state requirement and we cannot make it more restrictive than the state act.     
 
Jansen asked about restrictions for parks.   
 
Oldenburg said they were not in the model ordinance, but we could include this.   
 
Jansen asked about Rec Park.   
 
Oldenburg said the majority of Rec Park is restricted due to its proximity to a residential 
district.  Rec Park is owned by the city so no facility would be located here.   
 
Baranski asked about Washington Park.  If parks were included in the 1000-foot restriction 
nothing could be allowed on Main or Commerce streets. 
 
Oldenburg said the council does not want anything on Main Street, but they indicated they 
would be fine if a facility were on Commerce Street. 
 
Calvert asked about businesses that are also residences in the industrial district.   
 
Oldenburg said these were zoned general commercial.  To include this use would allow the 
downtown examples of this so it was omitted.  If the Board wanted to exclude in some areas 
but allow in the industrial districts, we could talk about an overlay district. 
 
Cook asked about co-locations.  Why wouldn’t everyone want to do this.   
 
Oldenburg said there are a lot of factors to this.  Some only want to do one facet.  The cost of 
starting a business is quite large.  Some cultivation or craft growers may want to have 
distribution or infusion.  Most dispensing organizations do it independently unless it is an 
accessory of the growing facility.   
 
Rosenthal said the only co-locations would be in the industrial districts.   
 
Oldenburg said basically yes. 
 
Baranski asked about smoking on site.  The state act allows this correct.   
 
Oldenburg said if the municipality allows this.  The powers given to municipalities state we 
can allow or disallow the onsite smoking.  The city does not handle any of the licensing – the 
state controls all of that as well as regulating personal use:  how much a person can have on 
them, how much they can consume on site, etc.  All people involved with the organization 
and the products distributed or grown will be carefully monitored.  We are regulating the 
locations only.  How the businesses operate is controlled by the state.   
 

Page 64 of 101



Cal. No. 19A-04 4 
 

Jansen asked about tax collection.   
 
Oldenburg said the city is working on passing an occupation tax which would allow them to 
collect 3% of the gross sales as well as a 2% of sales tax.  
 
Cook asked about taxes on the medical cannabis companies. 
 
Oldenburg said the provider would pay the tax.  This use cannot be regulated by us – they 
can be located anywhere.   
 
Calvert asked if a medical cannabis company could also have an adult use distribution. 
 
Oldenburg said he thought they could, but they would have to have a secondary license.  
Currently there are very few available licenses and every district has a license limit so 
companies must choose the communities where they locate which will be market driven.   
 
Nack said the medical facility would still need to comply with our set back regulations if they 
were to seek a secondary license.        
 
Jansen asked if the county would allow this.   
 
Nack said they could.   
 
Testimony presented in opposition to the request 
 

§ Rick Pariser, 113 South High Street, Galena, said he is specifically opposed to the 
dispensing of cannabis.  The other facets of the operations would be closed to the public.  He 
is not in favor of dispensing in the downtown area.  The zoning board is charged with 
determining where these facilities can be allowed.  On behalf of the image of Galena and all 
those who live here and visit a dispensing facility should not be located where our main source 
of income comes from.  He would like to see the dispensaries limited to the industrial districts.  
The city would not have to rush into this; we could later expand it to a site such as Commerce 
Street.  It seems we have enough legal vices and now as a government we are sanctioning 
something that is injurious to our health.   
 

APPLICABLE SECTIONS OF THE ZONING ORDINANCE 
 
§ Article 4, Table §154.403.1 Permitted Land Uses Table sets forth the land uses and which 

districts they are allowed. 
§ Article 4, Section §154.406 (B),(D) & (G) Principal Agricultural, Commercial and Industrial 

Land Uses set forth the detailed land use descriptions. 
§ Article 6, Table §154.601.3 Minimum Required Parking Spaces sets forth the required off-

street parking spaces by land use.  
§ Article 9, Section §154.919 sets forth the Non-Administrative Development Review Common 

Elements of Procedures. 

Page 65 of 101



Cal. No. 19A-04 5 
 

§ Article 9, Section §154.920 sets forth the procedures for Zoning Code Amendment and 
Rezoning. 

 
DETERMINATION 
 
Based upon the facts in this case, the Zoning Board of Appeals does find and conclude that the 
request by the City of Galena for a text amendment as described above should be approved for the 
following reasons: 

(1)     Whether the existing text or zoning designation was in error at the time of 
adoption;  N/A 

(2)     Whether there has been a change of character in the area or throughout the city due 
to installation of public facilities, other zone changes, new growth trends, deterioration, 
development transitions, etc.; N/A. 

(3)     Whether the proposed rezoning is compatible with the surrounding area and 
defining characteristics of the proposed zoning district or whether there may be adverse impacts 
on the capacity or safety of the portion of street network influenced by the rezoning, parking 
problems, or environmental impacts that the new zone may generate such as excessive storm 
water runoff, water, air or noise pollution, excessive nighttime lighting, or other nuisances;  N/A 

(4)     Whether the proposal is in conformance with and in furtherance of the 
implementation of the goals and policies of the Comprehensive Plan, other adopted plans, and 
the policies, intents and requirements of this code, and other city regulations and guidelines;  
This amendment is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan. 

(5)     Whether adequate public facilities and services are available or will be made 
available concurrent with the projected impacts of development in the proposed zone; There are 
adequate public facilities and services available. 

(6)     Whether there is an adequate supply of land available in the subject area and the 
surrounding community to accommodate the zoning and community needs; or  Yes, there is 
adequate land to accommodate this use. 

(7)     Whether there is a need in the community for the proposal and whether there will 
be benefits derived by the community or area by the proposed rezoning.  There will be a need 
after legalization by the State. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 66 of 101



Cal. No. 19A-04 6 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that this Zoning Board of Appeals does recommend to 
the City Council of the City of Galena that this request by the City of Galena for a Text Amendment 
as described above should be approved as proposed. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 11th day of September, A.D. 2019, by the Galena Zoning Board 
of Appeals by a vote of 5 ayes, 2 nays, 0 absent, 0 abstain, 0 recused. 
 
 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      John Rosenthal, Chairperson 
 

Page 67 of 101



Cal. No. 19A-04 1 

Ordinance #O - 1__ - __ __ 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ARTICLE 0, SECTION §154.015 – DEFINITIONS AND ARTICLE 4, TABLE 
154.403.1 – PERMITTED LAND USES AND SECTION §154.406 – DETAILED LAND USE DESCRIPTIONS OF 

THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF GALENA 
_____________________________________________________________________   

 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Galena, Jo Daviess County, Illinois as follows: 
 
 
SECTION I:  Section §154.015 – Definitions of the City of Galena Zoning Code, is hereby amended as follows  
 
§ (Additions are shown as underlined) 
 
Section §154.015 - Definitions 
 
Adult-Use Cannabis Business Establishment: 
An adult-use cannabis cultivation center, craft grower, processing organization, infuser organization, dispensing 
organization or transporting organization. 
 
Adult-Use Cannabis Craft Grower: 
A facility operated by an organization or business that is licensed by the Illinois Department of Agriculture to 
cultivate, dry, cure and package cannabis and perform other necessary activities to make cannabis available for 
sale at a dispensing organization or use at a processing organization, per the Cannabis Regulation and Tax Act, 
(P.A. 101-0027), as it may be amended from time-to-time, and regulations promulgated thereunder.  
 
Adult-Use Cannabis Cultivation Center: 
A facility operated by an organization or business that is licensed by the Illinois Department of Agriculture to 
cultivate, process, transport and perform necessary activities to provide cannabis and cannabis-infused products 
to licensed cannabis business establishments, per the Cannabis Regulation and Tax Act, (P.A. 101-0027), as it 
may be amended from time-to-time, and regulations promulgated thereunder. 
 
Adult-Use Cannabis Dispensing Organization: 
A facility operated by an organization or business that is licensed by the Illinois Department of Financial and 
Professional Regulation to acquire cannabis from licensed cannabis business establishments for the purpose of 
selling or dispensing cannabis, cannabis-infused products, cannabis seeds, paraphernalia or related supplies to 
purchasers or to qualified registered medical cannabis patients and caregivers, per the Cannabis Regulation and 
Tax Act, (P.A. 101-0027), as it may be amended from time-to-time, and regulations promulgated thereunder. 
 
Adult-Use Cannabis Infuser Organization Or Infuser:  
A facility operated by an organization or business that is licensed by the Illinois Department of Agriculture to 
directly incorporate cannabis or cannabis concentrate into a product formulation to produce a cannabis-infused 
product, per the Cannabis Regulation and Tax Act, (P.A. 101-0027), as it may be amended from time-to-time, 
and regulations promulgated thereunder. 
 
Adult-Use Cannabis Processing Organization Or Processor: 
A facility operated by an organization or business that is licensed by the Illinois Department of Agriculture to 
either extract constituent chemicals or compounds to produce cannabis concentrate or  incorporate cannabis 
or cannabis concentrate into a product formulation to produce a cannabis product, per the Cannabis Regulation 

Page 68 of 101



Cal. No. 19A-04 2 

and Tax Act, (P.A. 101-0027), as it may be amended from time-to-time, and regulations promulgated 
thereunder. 
 
Adult-Use Cannabis Transporting Organization Or Transporter:  
An organization or business that is licensed by the Illinois Department of Agriculture to transport cannabis on 
behalf of a cannabis business establishment or a community college licensed under the Community College 
Cannabis Vocational Training Pilot Program, per the Cannabis Regulation and Tax Act, (P.A. 101-0027), as it 
may be amended from time-to-time, and regulations promulgated thereunder. 
 
 
SECTION II:  Table 154.403.1 – Permitted Land Uses of the City of Galena Zoning Code, is hereby amended as follows: 
 
§ (Additions are shown as underlined and highlighted) 

 
 

Table 154.403.1. Permitted Land Uses 
 

LA CSR LDR MDR HDR NO PO NC PC GC DC PI LI HI 

Type of Land Use 
 

Principal  
Agricultural Land  

Uses 
 (154.406 (B)) 

P P P P P P P P P P P    (1) Cultivation 

P P P P P P P P P P P    (2) Husbandry 

S S S S S S S S S S S    (3) Agricultural Services 

P P P P P P P P P P P    
(4) On-Site Agricultural 
Retail 

           S S S (5) Selective Cutting 

              (6) Clear Cutting 

S           S S S 
(7) Adult-Use Cannabis 
Cultivation 

P = Permitted by Right (See section 154.402(A))  S = Permitted by a Special Use (See section 154.402 (B)) 

 
 LA   Limited Agricultural  HDR   High Density Residential  PC   Planned Commercial  LI   Light Industrial 
 CSR   Countryside Residential  NO   Neighborhood Office  GC   General Commercial  HI   Heavy Industrial 
 LDR   Low Density Residential  PO   Planned Office   DC   Downtown Commercial   
 MDR   Medium Density Residential NC   Neighborhood Commercial  PI   Planned Industrial 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 69 of 101



Cal. No. 19A-04 3 

Table 154.403.1. Permitted Land Uses 

LA CSR LDR MDR HDR NO PO NC PC GC DC PI LI HI 

Type of Land Use 
 

Principal 
Commercial Land 

Uses 
(154.406 (D)) 

     P P P P P P P P P (1) Office 

     S S P P P P S   
(2) Personal or 
Professional Service 

S S    S  P P P P P P P (3) Artisan Studio 

      S P P P P S   
(4) Sales and Service, 
Indoor 

         P    P 
(5) Sales and Service, 
Outdoor Display 

         P     
(6) Sales and Service, 
In-Vehicle 

 S S S S S         
(7) Accommodations, 
Bed & Breakfast 

  S   S  S S S S    (8) Accommodations, 
Small Inn 

      S  S P S S   
(9) Accommodations, 
Hotel/Motel 

      S S P P P S   
(10) Entertainment, 
Indoor Commercial 

S         S   S  
(11) Entertainment, 
Outdoor Commercial 

            S S 
(12) Entertainment, 
Adult 

        S P S P P P 
(13) Maintenance  
Service, Indoor 

         S    P 
(14) Maintenance 
Service, Outdoor 

S         S    S 
(15) Commercial 
Animal Boarding 

         P   P P 
(16) Vehicle Repair and 
Maintenance 

     P  P  P P    (17) House Tour 

S S S S    S  S S    
(18) Accommodations, 
Vacation Rental 

          S S S S 
(19) Adult-Use Cannabis 
Dispensing Organization 

P = Permitted by Right (See section 154.402(A))  S = Permitted by a Special Use (See section 154.402 (B)) 

 
 LA   Limited Agricultural  HDR   High Density Residential  PC   Planned Commercial  LI   Light Industrial 
 CSR   Countryside Residential  NO   Neighborhood Office  GC   General Commercial  HI   Heavy Industrial 
 LDR   Low Density Residential  PO   Planned Office   DC   Downtown Commercial   
 MDR   Medium Density Residential NC   Neighborhood Commercial  PI   Planned Industrial 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 70 of 101



Cal. No. 19A-04 4 

Table 154.403.1. Permitted Land Uses 
 

LA CSR LDR MDR HDR NO PO NC PC GC DC PI LI HI 

Type of Land Use 
 

Principal Industrial 
Uses (154.406 (G)) 

P P P P P P P P P P P    (1) Light Industrial 

P P P P P P P P P P P    (2) Heavy Industrial 

S S S S S S S S S S S    
(3) Communication 
Tower 

P P P P P P P P P P P    (4) Extraction Use 

           S S S 
(5) Adult-Use Cannabis 
Industrial 

P = Permitted by Right (See section 154.402(A))  S = Permitted by a Special Use (See section 154.402 (B)) 

 
 LA   Limited Agricultural  HDR   High Density Residential  PC   Planned Commercial  LI   Light Industrial 
 CSR   Countryside Residential  NO   Neighborhood Office  GC   General Commercial  HI   Heavy Industrial 
 LDR   Low Density Residential  PO   Planned Office   DC   Downtown Commercial   
 MDR   Medium Density Residential NC   Neighborhood Commercial  PI   Planned Industrial 

 
 
 
SECTION III:  Section §154.406 (B) – Principal Agricultural Land Uses of the City of Galena Zoning Code, is hereby 
amended as follows: 
 
§ (Additions are shown as underlined) 
 
(B)   Principal Agricultural Land Uses. 
 

(7) Adult-Use Cannabis Cultivation.  The following components of the Adult-Use Cannabis Facility shall be 
evaluated based on the entirety of the circumstances affecting the particular property in the context of the existing 
and intended future use of the properties: 

 
(a) Additional requirements to be designated in Special Use Permit: 

 
1. Hours of operation and anticipated number of customers/employees. 

 
2. Anticipated parking demand based on Table 154.601.3 and available private parking supply. 

 
3. Anticipated traffic generation in the context of adjacent roadway capacity and access to such roadways. 

 
4. Proposed signage plan. 

 
5. Compliance with all requirements provided in Section §154.406(B)(7)(b)(1) (Adult-Use Cannabis Craft 

Grower); §154.406(B)(7)(b)(2) (Adult-Use Cannabis Cultivation Center), as applicable. 
 

(b) Allowable uses and detailed regulations under §154.406(B)(7) of this Title: 
 

1. Adult-Use Cannabis Craft Grower: In those zoning districts in which an Adult-Use Cannabis 
Cultivation may be located, the proposed Adult-Use Cannabis Craft Grower facility must comply with the 
following: 
 
a. Facility may not be located within 1,000 feet of the property line of a pre-existing public or private 

nursery school, preschool, primary or secondary school or day care center. Learning centers and 

Page 71 of 101



Cal. No. 19A-04 5 

vocational/trade centers shall not be classified as a public or private school for purposes of this 
Section. 
 

b. Facility may not be located within 250 feet of the property line of a pre-existing property in a 
residential zoning district. 
 

c. Facility may not conduct any sales or distribution of cannabis other than as authorized by the Act. 
 

d. For purposes of determining required parking, Adult-Use Cannabis Craft Grower shall be classified 
as “Adult-Use Cannabis Cultivation” per Table 154.601.3 (Minimum Required Parking Spaces: 
Principal Agricultural Uses), provided, however, that the City may require that additional parking be 
provided as a result of the analysis completed through §154.924 Special Use Permits herein. 
 

e. Petitioner shall file an affidavit with the City affirming compliance with §154.406(B)(7)(b)(1) as 
provided herein and all other requirements of the Act. 

 
f. Additional Requirements: Petitioner shall install building enhancements, such as security cameras, 

lighting or other improvements, as set forth in the conditional use permit, to ensure the safety of 
employees and customers of the adult-use cannabis business establishments, as well as its environs. 
Said improvements shall be determined based on the specific characteristics of the floor plan for an 
Adult-Use Cannabis Business Establishment and the site on which it is located, consistent with the 
requirements of the Act. 
 

2. Adult-Use Cannabis Cultivation Center: In those zoning districts in which an Adult-Use Cannabis 
Cultivation Center may be located, the proposed facility must comply with the following: 
 
a. Facility may not be located within 1,000 feet of the property line of a pre-existing public or private 

nursery school, preschool, primary or secondary school or day care center. Learning centers and 
vocational/trade centers shall not be classified as a public or private school for purposes of this 
Section. 
 

b. Facility may not be located within 250 feet of the property line of a pre-existing property in a 
residential zoning district. 
 

c. Facility may not conduct any sales or distribution of cannabis other than as authorized by the Act. 
 

d. For purposes of determining required parking, Adult-Use Cannabis Cultivation Centers shall be 
classified as “Adult-Use Cannabis Cultivation” per Table 154.601.3 (Minimum Required Parking 
Spaces: Principal Agricultural Uses), provided, however, that the City may require that additional 
parking be provided as a result of the analysis completed through §154.924 Special Use Permits 
herein.  

 
e. Petitioner shall file an affidavit with the City affirming compliance with §154.406(B)(7)(b)(2) as 

provided herein and all other requirements of the Act.  
 

f. Additional Requirements: Petitioner shall install building enhancements, such as security cameras, 
lighting or other improvements, as set forth in the conditional use permit, to ensure the safety of 
employees and customers of the adult-use cannabis business establishments, as well as its environs. 
Said improvements shall be determined based on the specific characteristics of the floor plan for an 
Adult-Use Cannabis Business Establishment and the site on which it is located, consistent with the 
requirements of the Act. 

 
 
 

Page 72 of 101



Cal. No. 19A-04 6 

SECTION IV:  Section §154.406 (D) – Principal Commercial Land Uses of the City of Galena Zoning Code, is hereby 
amended as follows: 
 
§ (Additions are shown as underlined) 
 
(D)   Principal Commercial Land Uses. 
 

(19) Adult-Use Cannabis Dispensing Organization.  The following components of the Adult-Use Cannabis 
Facility shall be evaluated based on the entirety of the circumstances affecting the particular property in the context 
of the existing and intended future use of the properties: 

 
(a) Additional requirements to be designated in Special Use Permit: 

 
1. Hours of operation and anticipated number of customers/employees. 

 
2. Anticipated parking demand based on Table 154.601.3 and available private parking supply. 

 
3. Anticipated traffic generation in the context of adjacent roadway capacity and access to such roadways. 

 
4. Proposed signage plan. 

 
5. Compliance with all requirements provided in Section §154.406(D)(19)(b)(1) (Adult-Use Cannabis 

Dispensing Organization), as applicable. 
 

(b) Allowable uses and detailed regulations under §154.406(D)(19) of this Title: 
 

1. Adult-Use Cannabis Dispensing Organization: In those zoning districts in which an Adult-Use 
Cannabis Dispensing Organization may be located, the proposed facility must comply with the following: 
 
a. Facility may not be located within 1,000 feet of the property line of a pre-existing public or private 

nursery school, preschool, primary or secondary school or day care center. Learning centers and 
vocational/trade centers shall not be classified as a public or private school for purposes of this 
Section. 
 

b. Facility may not be located in a dwelling unit or within 250 feet of the property line of a pre-existing 
property in a residential zoning district. 

 
c. At least 75% of the floor area of any tenant space occupied by a dispensing organization shall be 

devoted to the activities of the dispensing organization as authorized by the Act, and no dispensing 
organization shall also sell food for consumption on the premises other than as authorized in 
§154.406(D)(19)(b)(1)(e) below in the same tenant space. 

 
d. Facility may not conduct any sales or distribution of cannabis other than as authorized by the Act. 

 
e. Facility may be issued a permit to host on-site consumption of cannabis if located in a freestanding 

structure occupied solely by the dispensing organization and smoke from the facility does not migrate 
into an enclosed area where smoking is prohibited. The security plan for the facility required by 
§154.406(D)(19)(b)(1)(i) (Additional Requirements) shall also reflect adequate provisions to respond 
to disruptive conduct and over-consumption. The on-site consumption permit shall be reviewed 
annually and may be suspended or revoked following notice and hearing as provided in §154.919(O) 
of the City of Galena Zoning Code. 

 
f. For purposes of determining required parking, said facilities shall be classified as “Adult-Use 

Cannabis Commercial” per Table 154.601.3 (Minimum Required Parking Spaces: Principal 

Page 73 of 101



Cal. No. 19A-04 7 

Commercial Uses), provided, however, that the City may require that additional parking be provided 
as a result of the analysis completed through §154.924 Special Use Permits herein. 

 
g. Petitioner shall file an affidavit with the City affirming compliance with §154.406(D)(19)(b)(1) as 

provided herein and all other requirements of the Act. 
 

h. Co-Location of Cannabis Business Establishments. The City may approve the co-location of an 
Adult-Use Cannabis Dispensing Organization with an Adult-Use Cannabis Craft Grower Center or an 
Adult-Use Cannabis Infuser Organization, or both, subject to the provisions of the Act and the 
Conditional Use criteria within the City of Galena Zoning Code. In a co-location, the floor space 
requirements of §154.406(D)(19)(b)(1)(c) and §154.406(G)(5)(b)(1)(c) shall not apply, but the co-
located establishments shall be the sole use of the tenant space. 

 
i. Additional Requirements: Petitioner shall install building enhancements, such as security cameras, 

lighting or other improvements, as set forth in the conditional use permit, to ensure the safety of 
employees and customers of the adult-use cannabis business establishments, as well as its environs. 
Said improvements shall be determined based on the specific characteristics of the floor plan for an 
Adult-Use Cannabis Business Establishment and the site on which it is located, consistent with the 
requirements of the Act. 

 
SECTION V:  Section §154.406 (G) – Principal Industrial Land Uses of the City of Galena Zoning Code, is hereby 
amended as follows: 
 
§ (Additions are shown as underlined) 
 
(G)   Principal Industrial Land Uses. 
 

(5) Adult-Use Cannabis Industrial.  The following components of the Adult-Use Cannabis Facility shall be 
evaluated based on the entirety of the circumstances affecting the particular property in the context of the existing 
and intended future use of the properties: 

 
(a) Additional requirements to be designated in Special Use Permit: 

 
1. Hours of operation and anticipated number of customers/employees. 

 
2. Anticipated parking demand based on Table 154.601.3 and available private parking supply. 

 
3. Anticipated traffic generation in the context of adjacent roadway capacity and access to such roadways. 

 
4. Proposed signage plan. 

 
5. Compliance with all requirements provided in §154.406(G)(5)(b)(1) (Adult-Use Cannabis Infuser 

Organization); §154.406(G)(5)(b)(2) (Adult-Use Cannabis Processing Organization); and 
§154.406(G)(5)(b)(3) (Adult-Use Cannabis Transporting Organization), as applicable. 
 

(b) Allowable uses and detailed regulations under §154.406(G)(5) of this Title: 
 

1. Adult-Use Cannabis Infuser Organization: In those zoning districts in which an Adult-Use Cannabis 
Infuser Organization may be located, the proposed facility must comply with the following: 
 
a. Facility may not be located within 1,000 feet of the property line of a pre-existing public or private 

nursery school, preschool, primary or secondary school or day care center. Learning centers and 
vocational/trade centers shall not be classified as a public or private school for purposes of this 
Section. 
 

Page 74 of 101



Cal. No. 19A-04 8 

b. Facility may not be located in a dwelling unit or within 250 feet of the property line of a pre-existing 
property in a residential zoning district. 
 

c. At least 75% of the floor area of any tenant space occupied by an infusing organization shall be 
devoted to the activities of the infusing organization as authorized by the Act. Facility may not 
conduct any sales or distribution of cannabis other than as authorized by the Act. 
 

d. For purposes of determining required parking, said facilities shall be classified as “Adult-Use 
Cannabis Industrial” per Table 154.601.3 (Minimum Required Parking Spaces: Storage, Wholesaling 
& Industrial Uses), provided, however, that the City may require that additional parking be provided 
as a result of the analysis completed through §154.924 Special Use Permits herein. 

 
e. Petitioner shall file an affidavit with the City affirming compliance with §154.406(G)(5)(b)(1) as 

provided herein and all other requirements of the Act.  
 

f. Additional Requirements: Petitioner shall install building enhancements, such as security cameras, 
lighting or other improvements, as set forth in the conditional use permit, to ensure the safety of 
employees and customers of the adult-use cannabis business establishments, as well as its environs. 
Said improvements shall be determined based on the specific characteristics of the floor plan for an 
Adult-Use Cannabis Business Establishment and the site on which it is located, consistent with the 
requirements of the Act. 

 
2. Adult-Use Cannabis Processing Organization: In those zoning districts in which an Adult-Use 

Cannabis Processing Organization may be located, the proposed facility must comply with the following: 
 
a. Facility may not be located within 1,000 feet of the property line of a pre-existing public or private 

nursery school, preschool, primary or secondary school or day care center. Learning centers and 
vocational/trade centers shall not be classified as a public or private school for purposes of this 
Section. 
 

b. Facility may not be located in a dwelling unit or within 250 feet of the property line of a pre-existing 
property in a residential zoning district. 

 
c. At least 75% of the floor area of any tenant space occupied by a processing organization shall be 

devoted to the activities of the processing organization as authorized by the Act. Facility may not 
conduct any sales or distribution of cannabis other than as authorized by the Act. 

 
d. For purposes of determining required parking, said facilities shall be classified as “Adult-Use 

Cannabis Industrial” per Table 154.601.3 (Minimum Required Parking Spaces: Storage, Wholesaling 
& Industrial Uses), provided, however, that the City may require that additional parking be provided 
as a result of the analysis completed through §154.924 Special Use Permits herein.  

 
e. Petitioner shall file an affidavit with the City affirming compliance with §154.406(G)(5)(b)(2) as 

provided herein and all other requirements of the Act. 
 

f. Additional Requirements: Petitioner shall install building enhancements, such as security cameras, 
lighting or other improvements, as set forth in the conditional use permit, to ensure the safety of 
employees and customers of the adult-use cannabis business establishments, as well as its environs. 
Said improvements shall be determined based on the specific characteristics of the floor plan for an 
Adult-Use Cannabis Business Establishment and the site on which it is located, consistent with the 
requirements of the Act. 

 
3. Adult-Use Cannabis Transporting Organization: In those zoning districts in which an Adult-Use 

Transporting Organization may be located, the proposed facility must comply with the following: 
 

Page 75 of 101



Cal. No. 19A-04 9 

a. Facility may not be located within 1,000 feet of the property line of a pre-existing public or private 
nursery school, preschool, primary or secondary school or day care center. Learning centers and 
vocational/trade centers shall not be classified as a public or private school for purposes of this 
Section. 
 

b. Facility may not be located in a dwelling unit or within 250 feet of the property line of a pre-existing 
property in a residential zoning district. 
 

c. The transporting organization shall be the sole use of the tenant space in which it is located. Facility 
may not conduct any sales or distribution of cannabis other than as authorized by the Act. 
 

d. For purposes of determining required parking, said facilities shall be classified as “Adult-Use 
Cannabis Industrial” per Table 154.601.3 (Minimum Required Parking Spaces: Storage, Wholesaling 
& Industrial Uses), provided, however, that the City may require that additional parking be provided 
as a result of the analysis completed through §154.924 Special Use Permits herein.  
 

e. Petitioner shall file an affidavit with the City affirming compliance with §154.406(G)(5)(b)(2) as 
provided herein and all other requirements of the Act. 

 
f. Additional Requirements: Petitioner shall install building enhancements, such as security cameras, 

lighting or other improvements, as set forth in the conditional use permit, to ensure the safety of 
employees and customers of the adult-use cannabis business establishments, as well as its environs. 
Said improvements shall be determined based on the specific characteristics of the floor plan for an 
Adult-Use Cannabis Business Establishment and the site on which it is located, consistent with the 
requirements of the Act. 

 
SECTION VI:  Table 154.601.3 – Minimum Required Parking Spaces of the City of Galena Zoning Code, is hereby 
amended as follows: 
 
(Additions are shown as underlined) 
 

TABLE 154.601.3 
MINIMUM REQUIRED PARKING SPACES 

LAND USE REQUIRED NUMBER OF PARKING STALLS 
AGRICULTURAL 
…On-Site Agricultural Retail 1 per every 200 sq. ft. of product display area 

Adult-Use Cannabis Agriculture 1 per employee on the largest work shift 

COMMERCIAL  

…Accommodations, Vacation Rental – Single Room See § 154.406(H)(9) 

Adult-Use Cannabis Commercial 1 per 300 sq. ft. of gross floor area 

STORAGE, WHOLESALING & INDUSTRIAL  

…Extraction Use 1 per employee on the largest work shift 

Adult-Use Cannabis Industrial 1 per employee on the largest work shift 

 
 
SECTION VII: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION VIII:  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect within ten (10) days of its passage and legal publication 
in pamphlet form. 
 
 
 

Page 76 of 101



Cal. No. 19A-04 10 

SECTION IX:  Passed on the __th day of________________, A.D., 201__, in open Council. 
 
 AYES:      NAYS:    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST:   
 
 
 
____________________________________                  _________________________________  
TERRY RENNER, MAYOR    MARY BETH HYDE, CITY CLERK  

Page 77 of 101



0.00 0.25 0.50

Miles

 Map produced by the Jo Daviess County GIS/IT Department on 8/22/19.
 This is NOT a substitute for an actual field survey. Aerial imagery - 2016.

Page 78 of 101



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, PO Box 310, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 

  
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:    Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    October 10, 2019 

RE:    New Public Works Truck and Equipment 
 
In August, the council approved issuing bids for the purchase of a new dump truck and related 
equipment in the next fiscal year.  Bids were recently advertised and issued to area truck and 
equipment companies.  I am writing to present the bid results and recommend the vendors for the 
truck and equipment.  
 
Two bids were received for the truck.  The bids are detailed in Table 1 below.    

 
Table 1.  New 2 ½ Ton Dump Truck 

 

Dealership  Business Location Year Make Cost 

Truck Country  Shullsburg, WI 2021 Freightliner  $86,200 

Thompson International  Dubuque, IA 2021 International   $91,000 

 
Three bids were received for the new equipment.  The equipment includes a dump body, 
snow plow, and salt spreader.   The bid details are shown in Table 2 below. 

 
Table 2.  Equipment Costs for New Dump Truck 

 

Company Business Location Cost 

Monroe Truck Equipment Monroe, WI $50,436 

Tri‐State Truck Equipment Dubuque, IA $50,477 

Henderson Products Manchester, IA $52,706 

 
Public Works Director, Jim Rigdon, has reviewed the truck and equipment specifications and bids.  
He recommends purchasing the 2021 Freightliner from Truck County for $86,200.  He recommends 
the equipment package and build‐up from Monroe Truck Equipment for $50,436.  The total package 
cost for the truck and equipment would be $136,636.  This amount would need to be included in 
our budget next year.   
 
Thompson offered a trade‐in value of $21,000 for our 2007 dump truck that we propose to replace.  
As described in a separate report, we propose to sell the 2007 truck to the City of East Dubuque for 
$21,000.    
 
Please feel free to contact me with any questions.  Thank you. 

Page 79 of 101



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:    Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    October 10, 2019 

RE:    Surplus Property   
 
In order to sell or otherwise dispose of property that the city no longer finds useful, an ordinance 
must be passed declaring the property “surplus.”  I am presenting for your consideration a surplus 
property ordinance  to declare  two Public Works  trucks surplus and request authorization  to sell 
both vehicles.    
 
One truck is a 2006 Dodge pickup.  We advertised the sale of the truck on Craigslist and accepted 
sealed bids with a minimum bid of 2,995.  One bid of $4,250 was received by the bid deadline from 
Mark’s Auto Body, Inc. of Solon, Iowa.  I recommend accepting the bid and selling the truck.  
 
The  second  truck  is  a  2007  Sterling dump  truck.   At  the August 26  council meeting,  the  council 
approved issuing bids for the purchase of a new dump truck in the next fiscal year.  Those bids were 
received on October 8 and are described  in a separate agenda  item.   The highest  trade‐in value 
offered by the bidders  for  the 2007 truck was $21,000. The City of East Dubuque has expressed 
interest  in  purchasing  the  2007  truck.  In  consultation with  Public Works  Director,  Jim  Rigdon,  I 
recommend selling the truck to the City of East Dubuque for $21,000.  The sale would not occur until 
we receive the new truck in the spring of 2020.  
 
I  request your approval of  the surplus property ordinance and suggest you consider waiving the 
second reading.  As you will recall, the second reading may be waived by an affirmative vote of not 
less than four council members after an express determination on the record that the circumstances 
for doing so are just.   

   

 

Page 80 of 101



Ordinance #19‐ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF  
MUNICIPALLY OWNED PERSONAL PROPERTY  

 
    WHEREAS in the opinion of the corporate authorities of the City of Galena, it is no 
longer necessary or useful to or for the best interest of the City of Galena to retain the 
following described personal property now owned by it: 
 

(1) 2006 Dodge 2500 ¾ ton 4 x 4 pickup.  102,600 miles.  

 
(1) 2007 Sterling Dump truck. 32,250 miles.  

 
  BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Galena, Jo Daviess County, Illinois, as 
follows: 

 
  SECTION I: Pursuant to 65 ILCS 5/11‐76‐4, the corporate authorities find that the 
personal property listed above and now owned by the City of Galena is no longer useful and the 
best interest of the City of Galena will be served by its sale.   
 
  SECTION II:  The City Administrator is hereby authorized to sell the 2006 Dodge pickup 
to Mark’s Auto Body, Inc. 132 E. Short Street, Solon, Iowa 52333 for the fair market value of 
$4,250.   
 
  SECTION III:  The City Administrator is hereby authorized to sell the 2007 dump truck to 
the City of East Dubuque for the fair market value of $21,000 upon receipt of the newly 
purchased dump truck.    
 
  SECTION IV:  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage 
and approval in the manner provided by law. 
 
             SECTION V:  Passed on this ____ day of ________________, A.D., 2019, in open Council. 
       
      AYES:        NAYS: 
            
            __________________________________________       
            TERRY RENNER, MAYOR      
 
________________________________________ 
ATTEST: MARY BETH HYDE, CITY CLERK 

Page 81 of 101



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, PO Box 310, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 

  
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    October 9, 2019 

RE:    Water System Improvements 
 
 
As you are aware, we are considering two major water system projects.  One project would 
upgrade water main on Park Avenue and other areas of the east side (East Side Project).  The 
other project would involve removing the Franklin Street water tower and making numerous 
improvements to normalize water pressure on the west side (West Side Project).  Both projects 
would be funded from the Public Water Supply Loan Program administered by the Illinois 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).  I am writing to present the results of a rate study 
conducted to determine the water rate increases needed to complete each project.  The study 
also examined the current rates and revenues in the context of regular operations and 
maintenance expenses for the Water Fund. 
 
East Side Project 
In 2015, IIW Engineers completed a study of our water system and recommended several 
projects to improve system supply, reliability, pressure, firefighting capability, and water quality 
on the east side of the community.  In 2017, you approved contracts for the design of the first 
phase of improvements and for the preparation of a related loan application to the EPA.  In 2018, 
you approved an ordinance authorizing the City to borrow funds for the project from the 
program administered by the EPA.  We are now in a position to move forward with the project by 
adopting the rate increase needed to fund the project.  
 
To assess revenue needs for the $1,750,000 East Side Project ($1.91 million including sewer and 
street improvements), we calculated the annual debt service for the project.  With a current 
interest rate of 1.51%, a 20‐year term, and 60% of the principal forgiven, the loan amount would 
be $950,000.  This equates to an annual revenue need of $55,400 to cover principal and interest 
payments.  Based on the number of water system users, a monthly base fee increase of $2.29 per 
user would be required to support the debt.  The fee increase would increase the monthly water 
base fee from $4.03 to $6.32.  The fee would be effective May 1, 2020.  Project construction 
would begin in the spring of 2020 and be completed in the summer of 2020.  The first loan 
payment is expected in early 2021.  
 

Page 82 of 101



2 of 4 

Operations and Maintenance 
We also reviewed the revenue needs for all Water Fund operations and expenses outside of the 
proposed project debt.  We calculated a revenue need of $75,000 beginning in fiscal year 2021 to 
support operations and maintenance.  To cover the revenue needs for the study period, a $0.74 
increase of the volumetric rate (per 1,000 gallons), effective May 1, 2020, is recommended.      

 
West Side Project 
In 2018, we commissioned IIW Engineers to examine the possibility of removing the Franklin 
Street water tower as an alternative to costly maintenance.  The study determined that the 
water system would have adequate storage if the tower were eliminated.  A second study was 
commenced in late 2018 to develop a computer model of the west side water system and to 
compare the options of maintaining the tower or removing the tower.  The study found that with 
either option, extensive improvements are needed to the water system to resolve both low 
pressure and high pressure issues.  IIW recommended the option of removing the water tower 
and completing the needed distribution system improvements.  The total cost of the project, 
including consulting services for the EPA loan application and loan administration is estimated as 
$1.29 million.  
 
To assess the revenue needs for the West Side Project, we calculated the annual debt for the 
project.  Using the current interest rate of 1.51%, a 20‐year term, and 60% of the principal 
forgiven (which could change between now and project approval), the loan amount would be 
$516,000.  This equates to an annual revenue need of $30,085 to cover principal and interest 
payments.  Based on the number of water system users, a monthly volumetric fee increase of 
$0.30 would be required to support the debt.  The fee increase would raise the monthly water 
volumetric fee from $5.46 to $5.76 (assuming the previously discussed increase takes effect May 
1, 2020).  The fee would be effective May 1, 2022.  Project construction would begin in the spring 
of 2022 and be completed in the summer of 2022.  The first loan payment is expected in early 
2023.  
 
The contemplated rate increases for the East Side Project, the West Side Project, and operations 
and maintenance are shown in Table 1 below. 
   

Table 1.  Water Fund Rate Increases: 2020 and 2022 
 

Revenue Use  Rate Increase  Rate Type  Effective Date 

East Side Project debt  $2.29  Base  May 1, 2020 

Operating expenses  $0.74  Per 1,000 gallons  May 1, 2020 

West Side Project debt  $0.30  Per 1,000 gallons  May 1, 2022 

 
Based on the average monthly water use of 4,100 gallons per customer, we calculated the effect 
of the contemplated rate increases on the average bill of our customers.  As shown in Table 2 on 
the following page, the average monthly water bill would increase from $23.68 today to $29.07 
after the May 2020 rate increases are implemented.  The average monthly water bill would 
increase to $30.31 in May 2022 with the rate increase for the West Side Project.  

Page 83 of 101



3 of 4 

Table 2.  Effect of Water Rate Increases for Customer  
 

Effective Date  Rate Increase  Average Monthly Customer Bill 

Current  NA  $23.68 

May 1, 2020  $2.29 base fee  $25.97 

May 1, 2020  $0.74 per 1,000 gallons  $29.07 

May 1, 2022  $0.30 per 1,000 gallons  $30.31 

 
While it is not pleasant to consider increasing rates for our residents and businesses, I believe the 
city council and staff have worked diligently to manage the water system efficiently and to avoid 
rate increases.  The last increase of water rates was 15 years ago in 2004.   
 
Schedule  
The East Side Project and the West Side Project are ambitious undertakings that require 
considerable planning, design, construction oversight, and administration.  We are very close to 
securing approval from the EPA to bid the East Side Project.  The bidding would occur in 
December with construction starting in the spring.  With council approval, we would start the 
loan application process for the West Side Project with the goal of commencing construction in 
the spring of 2022.  The following tables show the tentative schedules for the East Side and West 
Side projects, respectively.  
 

Table 3.  East Side Water System Improvement Project: Tentative Schedule 
 

  Project Element  Start Date 

1  Adopt rate increase ordinance     October 2019  

2  Finalize plans and specifications  November 2019 

3  Advertise project for bidding    December 2019 

4  Award construction contract   February 2020 

5  Start Construction   April 2020 

 
Table 4.  West Side Water System Improvement Project: Tentative Schedule 

 
  Project Element  Start Date 

1  Submit funding nomination to EPA  January 2020 

2  EPA approval of project plan  September 2020 

3  EPA funds reserved for City’s project  July 2021 

4  Loan application & financial review  May 2021 

5  Authorizing loan ordinance  June 2021 

6  Adopt rate increase ordinance     October 2021  

7  Finalize plans and specifications  September 2021 

8  Advertise project for bidding    December 2021 

9  Award construction contract   February 2022 

10  Start construction   April 2022 

Page 84 of 101



4 of 4 

 
Action Items 
To continue moving the projects forward, I request you consider the following action items at the 
October 15 council meeting: 
 

1. Adoption of the tentative project schedules for both projects. 
 

2. Approval to proceed with the preparation of the ordinance for May 2020 water rate 
increases for the East Side Project and general operations and maintenance. 

 
3. Approval to proceed with preparation of loan application and administration contracts 

with Community Funding and Planning Services for the West Side Project.  
 

A separate agenda item is included to amend the East Side Project loan application contract with 
Community Funding and Planning Services.  The amendment adds $2,700 to the original contract 
to compensate the firm for work performed outside the scope of the original contract.  The 
additional work is described in the amendment and resulted from the installation of watermain 
in the US 20 right‐of‐way prior to the Illinois Department of Transportation (IDOT) paving project 
early this summer.  The watermain was planned to be installed as part of the East Side Project 
but was expedited and coordinated with the IDOT project.  
 
Please let me know if you have any questions.  Thank you.  

 
 
  

   
 
 
 

Page 85 of 101



FY 21 Number Revenue Calcuated Current New 
Current Billing Revenue of Per Customer Monthly Monthly Monthly
Rates Required Customers Per Month Fee Increase Fee Fee

Base Rate $4.03 $55,400 2,019         $2.29 $2.29 $4.03 $6.32
Volumetric Rate $4.72 $75,000 2,019         $3.10 $0.74 $4.72 $5.46

$632,008

Notes:
Number of connections/customers = 2,019                 
Gallons of water use per year  (FY 18) = 100,884,556     
Gallons of water per month per user = 4,164                

  
Rate Increase Impact:

$23.68 (based on average monthly use of 4164 gallons per customer)
Proposed monthly combined rate = $29.07 (based on average monthly use of 4164 gallons per customer)
Monthly Dollar Increase = $5.38

Revenue Required (1): East Side Water Main Project
Calculation of Required Water Rates for FY 2021 

Revenue Required (2) General Operations and Maintenance 

Current monthly combined rate =

Page 86 of 101



FY 23 Number Revenue Calcuated Current New 
Current Billing Revenue of Per Customer Monthly Monthly Monthly
Rates Required Customers Per Month Fee Increase Fee Fee

Base Rate $6.32 $0 2,019         $0.00 $0.00 $6.32 $6.32
Volumetric Rate $5.46 $30,085 2,019         $1.24 $0.30 $5.46 $5.76

$632,008

Notes:
Number of connections/customers = 2,019                 
Gallons of water use per year  (FY 18) = 100,884,556     
Gallons of water per month per user = 4,164                

  
Rate Increase Impact:

$29.07 (based on average monthly use of 4164 gallons per customer)
Proposed monthly combined rate = $30.31 (based on average monthly use of 4164 gallons per customer)
Monthly Dollar Increase = $1.24

Current monthly combined rate =

Calculation of Required Water Rates for FY 2023
Revenue Required (3): West Side Tower Elimination Project

Page 87 of 101



CITY OF GALENA, JO DAVIESS COUNTY
Five Year Projection of Revenues, Operations, Maintenance, and Debt Service

WATER FUND ‐ Water System Improvements Projects 1 Assumptions for Next 5 Year Estimates

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

Last year rate increase/Proposed Rate Increase 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 22.7% 0.0% 4.3% 0.0%  

Operating Revenues

Charge for Services $592,260 $582,174 $585,826 $603,000 $606,015 $609,045 $612,090 $615,151 Assumes 0.5% annual revenue increase beginning in FY 20.

Park Avenue Water Main ‐ Base fee increase for debt   $55,400 $55,400 $55,400 $55,400 $2.29 increase to base fee effective May 1, 2020. 

Per 1,000 gallon increase for all other expenses $75,000 $75,750 $76,508 $77,273 $0.74 per 1,000 gallons use rate increase on May 1, 2020.  1% annual rev. growth thereafter.

West Side Tower Elimination Project ‐ Base fee increase for debt $30,085 $30,386   $0.29 per 1,000 gallons use rate increase on May 1, 2022. 1% annual revenue growth thereafter.

Penalties $16,773 $12,887 $8,631 $8,631 $8,631 $8,631 $8,631 $8,631 Equal to actual penalties in FY 19.

Rent $80,366 $80,626 $85,217 $80,800 $82,416 $84,064 $85,746 $87,461 2% annual increase in current contracts with cellular companies (renting tower space).

Other Miscellaneous $12,752 $17,710 $17,930 $18,289 $18,654 $19,027 $19,408 $19,796 2% increase annually.

Other ‐ IEPA Park Avenue Water Main         $1,750,000       Proposed loan based on engineer's estimate.

Other ‐ IEPA West Side Project             $1,290,000     Proposed loan based on engineer's estimate.

Total Operating Revenues $702,151 $693,397 $697,604   $710,720 $2,596,116 $851,918 $2,177,867 $894,097 1

Operating Expenses

Personnel $80,405 $89,646 $115,553 $100,000 $102,000 $104,040 $106,121 $108,243 Reallocation of expenses across other funds in FY 20. 2% annual increase thereafter.

Pension Expense $14,669 $11,900

Maintenance Services $464,786 $340,968 $340,226 $347,031 $354,431 $361,519 $368,750 $376,125 2% annual increase of operations and maintenance contract (reflects new contract in 2019).

Professional Services $11,090 $12,174 $11,644 $11,877 $12,114 $12,357 $12,604 $12,856 2% annual increase.  

Communications $2,075 $1,500 $2,000

Services and Charges $11,093 $13,219 $15,096 $15,398 $15,706 $16,020 $16,340 $16,667 2% annual increase.  

General Supplies 2% annual increase.  

Other Expenditures $33,857 $33,194 $58,544 $59,715 $60,909 $62,127 $63,370 $64,637 2% annual increase.  

Bad Debt $32,307 $3,412 $210 $214 $218 $223 $227 $232 2% annual increase of the average of FY 16 and 18 (FY 17 had an anomaly bad debt case)  

Park Ave Water Main ‐ Construction $1,512,700 Engineer's estimate. 

Park Ave Water Main ‐ Design Engineer   $75,000 Engineer's estimate. 

Park Ave Water Main ‐ Construction Engineer $127,300 Engineer's estimate. 

Park Ave Water Main ‐ Loan Administration $35,000 Consultant's estimate.

Park Ave Water Main ‐ P&I Loan Repayment   $55,388 $55,388 $55,388 $1,750,000 loan with 60% forgiven.  Remaining $950,000 at 1.51% for 20 years.

West Side Project ‐ Construction $850,500 Engineer's estimate. 

West Side Project ‐ Design Engineer $85,050 Engineer's estimate. 

West Side Project ‐ Construction Engineer $97,200 Engineer's estimate. 

West Side Project ‐ Contingency $182,250 Engineer's estimate. 

West Side Project ‐ Loan Administration $35,000 $40,000 Consultant's estimate.  Loan application in FY 22.

West Side Project ‐ P&I Loan Repayment     $30,085 $1,290,000 loan with 60% forgiven.  Remaining $516,000 at 1.51% for 20 years.

Total Operating Expenses $650,282 $494,113 $555,173 $609,234 $2,220,379 $646,674 $1,877,800 $664,233

TOTAL OPERATING INCOME $51,869 $199,284 $142,431 $101,485 $375,738 $205,244 $300,068 $229,864

Non Operating Revenues (Expenses)

Interest Earnings $4,901 $4,095 $4,086 $2,000 $3,594 $3,522 $3,452 $3,383 FY 20 equals projected CD interest.  Thereafter, 0.75% of fund balance.

Interest Expense ‐ Water Tower ‐$34,870 ‐$31,669 ‐$28,388 ‐$26,717 ‐$23,311 ‐$19,820 ‐$16,241 ‐$12,571 Actual interest payments for 2007 water tower loan. 

Property Taxes Revenue $19 $20 $10 $10 $10 $10 $10 $10 Minimum property tax levy for Water Fund.

Pension Earnings $798

Other (Debt‐Principal Expense for Water Tower) ‐$128,987 ‐$135,380 ‐$138,786 ‐$142,277 ‐$145,856 ‐$149,525 Actual principal payments for 2008 water tower loan. (Payoff in FY 2027)

Total Non‐Operating Income (Loss) ‐$29,950 ‐$26,756 ‐$153,279 ‐$160,087 ‐$158,493 ‐$158,565 ‐$158,635 ‐$158,703

Net Change in Position Before Capital Items $21,919 $172,528 ‐$10,848 ‐$58,602 $217,245 $46,679 $141,433 $71,161

Capital Items

Income (Loss) Before Transfers ‐$226,146 ‐$64,010 ‐$119,203 ‐$25,000 ‐$25,500 ‐$26,010 ‐$26,530 ‐$27,061 FY 20 budgeted capital project with estimated capital expenses thereafter.

Equipment Replacement ‐$40,000 ‐$40,800 ‐$41,616 ‐$42,448 ‐$43,297 Equipment replacement estimate with 2% annual increase.

Transfers In

Transfers Out ‐$18,475 ‐$24,270 ‐$211,091 $8,820 $8,996 $9,176 $9,360 $9,547 FY 20 budgeted transfer with 2% increase thereafter.

Total Capital Items ‐$244,621 ‐$88,280 ‐$330,294 ‐$56,180 ‐$57,304 ‐$58,450 ‐$59,619 ‐$60,811

NET CHANGE IN POSITION ‐$222,702 $84,248 ‐$341,142 ‐$114,782 $159,941 ‐$11,771 $81,814 $10,350

YEAR END FUND BALANCE $935,164 $594,022 $479,240 $639,182 $627,411 $709,225 $719,575

Estimated ‐ Next 5 Years, Starting with Current Fiscal YearActual ‐ Previous 3 Years

Page 88 of 101



Page 89 of 101



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    October 9, 2019 

RE:    Insurance Renewal  
 
At the end of December, the city’s workers’ compensation, liability, auto, portable equipment 
and public official’s insurance policies with the Illinois Municipal League Risk Management 
Association (IMLRMA) will expire.  To extend coverage, the IMLRMA has quoted a new 
premium for next year and has again offered the 85/130 Minimum Maximum option.   
 
Effective for the year beginning January 1, 2020, the proposed policy carries a premium of 
$244,227.  This represents 2% decrease from last year’s premium of $249,202.  This is the 
second year in a row that the premium has decreased.  Last year, the premium dropped 4%. 
With about 800 municipalities in the ILMRMA insurance pool, the renewal rate is calculated 
from a combination of the loss experience of the whole pool as well as that of the individual 
municipality.  The value of insured property and the payroll also contribute to the premium.   
 
By committing to the 85/130 Minimum Maximum (Min/Max) option, the city may reduce the 
proposed premium $28,320.  With this savings, the City will pay a premium of $215,905. 
(includes 1 percent discount for paying entire premium by November 22).  The potential savings 
with the 85/130 program is an incentive for our municipality to practice sound risk 
management and avoid claims that may result in losses.    
 
The structure of the Min/Max option is relatively straightforward.  If losses are incurred above 
85 percent of the total dollars set aside for the payment of claims, the city will be responsible 
for each dollar up to 130 percent of the total dollars set aside for the payment of claims.  In this 
worst‐case scenario, the city would pay $296,067 for calendar year 2020.  Only claims filed 
during the 2020 calendar year would be counted for the purpose of determining if the city 
exceeds the 85 percent threshold.  If the city does not exceed the 85 percent threshold, the 
total premium for the year would be 85 percent (plus administrative costs) or $215,905. 
 
Though we have incurred significant losses in some years, the city’s long‐term loss history 
confirms that the Min/Max option is an effective method of reducing insurance costs.  While I 
am still waiting for the current year loss report, through November 2, 2018, the City saved more 
than $187,400 since joining the Min/Max program in 1998. 

 

Page 90 of 101



2 of 2 

 
Our current Liability Fund budget contains $238,000 for the insurance premium costs.  This 
budget amount exceeds the proposed premium of $215,905 by more than $22,000.  I 
recommend you authorize the city’s participation in the IMLRMA’s 85/130 Min/Max plan by 
passing the attached ordinance (including waiving the second reading) and by authorizing the 
payment of the premium.    
    

Page 91 of 101



 
 

 

Ordinance #O‐19‐ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF THE IMLRMA MINIMUM/MAXIMUM 
CONTRIBUTION AGREEMENT 

  ___________________________________________________ 
 
  Whereas, the City Council of the City of Galena, a member in good standing of the 
Illinois Municipal League Risk Management Association and party to the IMLRMA 
Intergovernmental Cooperation Contract, has been fully apprised of the IMLRMA 
Minimum/Maximum Contribution Agreement which amends and supplements the IMLRMA 
Declarations pages dated 01/01/2020 to 01/01/2021 and all endorsements thereto. 
 
  Whereas, the City Council of the City of Galena finds it to be in the best interest of the 
municipality to make its IMLRMA contribution in accordance with the IMLRMA 
Minimum/Maximum Contribution Agreement.   
 
  Be it ordained by the City Council of the City of Galena: 
 

1. That the execution of the IMLRMA Minimum/Maximum Contribution 
Agreement for a one (1) year period beginning 01/01/2020 and ending 
01/01/2021 is hereby authorized. 

2. That the Mayor and the Treasurer are hereby granted authority to execute 
the IMLRMA Minimum/Maximum Agreement which amends and 
supplements the IMLRMA Declarations pages dated 01/01/2020 to 
01/01/2021 and all endorsements thereto. 

3. That this ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its passage and 
approval.   

 
AYES:   NAYS:   PRESENT:   ABSENT:    

 
____________________________________________ 

Terry Renner, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
________________________________ 
           Mary Beth Hyde, City Clerk 
 
Passed this ___ day of October, 2019. 
 
Approved this ___ day of October, 2019. 
 
I, Mary Beth Hyde, Clerk of the City of Galena, Illinois, do hereby Certify that the foregoing is a true 
and correct copy of Ordinance No. O‐18‐ as adopted the ___ day of October, 2019.   
 

__________________________________________ 
Mary Beth Hyde, City Clerk 

Page 92 of 101



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     1
Input Dates: 9/24/2019 - 10/31/2019 Oct 10, 2019  08:22AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

CIVIL CONSTRUCTORS, INC. (1122)
092519 1 Invoice ROAD SURFACING 09/25/2019 172,788.77 41.61.860.02

Total CIVIL CONSTRUCTORS, INC. (1122): 172,788.77

CIVIL MATERIALS (120397)
118183 1 Invoice FLOOD CONTROL MAINT. 09/18/2019 871.20 20.25.515.00
118328 1 Invoice STORM SEWER 09/24/2019 176.13 01.41.514.06
118464 1 Invoice STORM SEWER 09/30/2019 58.28 01.41.514.06
118465 1 Invoice STORM SEWER 09/30/2019 480.88 01.41.514.06

Total CIVIL MATERIALS (120397): 1,586.49

DEARBORN NATIONAL LIFE INS. CO (119500)
100819 1 Invoice EMPLOYEE LIFE INSURA 10/08/2019 253.04 01.13.452.00

Total DEARBORN NATIONAL LIFE INS. CO (119500): 253.04

DECKER SUPPLY CO., INC. (867)
907307 1 Invoice ST. SIGNS 09/19/2019 63.67 01.41.652.04

Total DECKER SUPPLY CO., INC. (867): 63.67

DIAMOND VOGEL PAINTS (119461)
227072281 1 Invoice ST. MARKINGS 08/19/2019 31.25- 01.41.514.01
227072687 1 Invoice ST. PAINTING 09/24/2019 294.90 01.41.514.01

Total DIAMOND VOGEL PAINTS (119461): 263.65

ELITE PLUMBING (120136)
7659 1 Invoice WATER HEATER 06/28/2019 971.00 59.55.511.01
7753 1 Invoice GATEWAY PARK FOUNTA 09/20/2019 1,890.00 17.52.870.02
7760 1 Invoice GARAGE REPAIRS 09/20/2019 359.89 01.41.511.00

Total ELITE PLUMBING (120136): 3,220.89

FISCHER EXCAVATING, INC. (25638)
092619 1 Invoice CONSTRUCTION 09/26/2019 239,805.30 15.41.850.00

Total FISCHER EXCAVATING, INC. (25638): 239,805.30

GALENA ARC (850)
101519 1 Invoice HAHN COUNCIL SALARY  10/15/2019 100.00 01.11.432.00

Total GALENA ARC (850): 100.00

GALENA CHRYSLER (82)
72839 1 Invoice SQUAD 7 MAINTENANCE 03/11/2019 39.06 01.21.513.06
73164 1 Invoice SQUAD 1 BATTERY 04/30/2019 161.50 01.21.513.06
73302 1 Invoice SQUAD 2 REPAIRS 05/09/2019 162.00 01.21.513.06
73468 1 Invoice SQUAD 5 MAINTENANCE 05/31/2019 197.60 01.21.513.06
73481 1 Invoice SQUAD 4 MAINTENANCE 05/31/2019 796.30 01.21.513.06
74402 1 Invoice SQUAD 5 MAINTENANCE 10/01/2019 36.21 01.21.513.06
74439 1 Invoice SQUAD 2 MAINTENANCE 10/04/2019 45.56 01.21.513.06

Page 93 of 101



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     2
Input Dates: 9/24/2019 - 10/31/2019 Oct 10, 2019  08:22AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total GALENA CHRYSLER (82): 1,438.23

GASSER @ GALENA (24)
100119 1 Invoice TRAFFIC SIGNAL 10/01/2019 28.19 15.41.514.06
100119 2 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 10/01/2019 22.01 01.13.654.00
100119 3 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 10/01/2019 82.93 01.41.514.01
100119 4 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 10/01/2019 109.00 01.41.514.06
100119 5 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 10/01/2019 199.36 01.41.652.00
100119 6 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 10/01/2019 19.33 01.41.652.04
100119 7 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 10/01/2019 44.47 17.52.652.00
100119 8 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 10/01/2019 40.53 22.22.611.00
100119 9 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 10/01/2019 16.19 22.22.613.00
100119 10 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 10/01/2019 15.73 22.22.652.00
100119 11 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 10/01/2019 27.97 58.54.511.00
100119 12 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 10/01/2019 76.81 58.54.654.01
100119 13 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 10/01/2019 520.02 59.55.511.02
100119 14 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 10/01/2019 26.26 58.54.532.00

Total GASSER @ GALENA (24): 1,228.80

GHS AFTER PROM (750)
100119 1 Invoice AFTER PROM 10/01/2019 100.00 01.11.929.01

Total GHS AFTER PROM (750): 100.00

GLOBAL REACH INTERNET PROD. (119792)
103133 1 Invoice MONTHLY HOSTING FEE 08/01/2019 120.05 01.13.512.05

Total GLOBAL REACH INTERNET PROD. (119792): 120.05

GUY'S TRUCK & TRACTOR SERVICE (119033)
014525 1 Invoice ST. PROGRAM/STORM S 09/23/2019 372.60 01.41.514.06

GWI014493 1 Invoice ST. SWEEPER 09/17/2019 695.32 01.41.613.11

Total GUY'S TRUCK & TRACTOR SERVICE (119033): 1,067.92

HALSTEAD, MARY L. (119966)
101519 1 Invoice CITY HALL JANITOR 10/15/2019 290.00 01.13.511.07
101519 2 Invoice PUBLIC RESTROOMS AT  10/15/2019 270.00 01.13.511.08
101519 3 Invoice PARKS RESTROOMS 10/15/2019 765.00 17.52.422.00
101519 4 Invoice MARKET HOUSE RESTR 10/15/2019 258.50 01.13.511.09

Total HALSTEAD, MARY L. (119966): 1,583.50

HEARTLAND FIRE & SECURITY (119499)
18435 1 Invoice FIRE ALARM MONITORIN 10/01/2019 263.40 58.54.532.01

Total HEARTLAND FIRE & SECURITY (119499): 263.40

HOLLAND HEATING, AIR COND (99)
46739 1 Invoice FURNACE INSPECTION &  09/20/2019 240.98 59.55.511.02
46740 1 Invoice GARAGE MAINTENANCE 09/20/2019 119.24 01.41.511.00
46741 1 Invoice SLUDGE BARN 09/20/2019 101.04 01.41.863.09

Page 94 of 101



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     3
Input Dates: 9/24/2019 - 10/31/2019 Oct 10, 2019  08:22AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

46810 1 Invoice FURNACE INSPECTION &  09/20/2019 317.59 01.21.511.00

Total HOLLAND HEATING, AIR COND (99): 778.85

IFIBER (119998)
F-1904 120 1 Invoice INTERNET 10/01/2019 375.00 22.22.652.00

Total IFIBER (119998): 375.00

IIW ENGINEERS & SURVEYORS, PC (260)
72956 1 Invoice WATER TOWER STUDY 09/23/2019 11,768.00 51.42.831.00

Total IIW ENGINEERS & SURVEYORS, PC (260): 11,768.00

IL ASSN OF CHIEFS OF POLICE (486)
4741 1 Invoice MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL 10/01/2019 110.00 01.21.561.00

Total IL ASSN OF CHIEFS OF POLICE (486): 110.00

IL EPA (119716)
L17-1944 1 Invoice TOWER/WELL LOAN 10/01/2019 68,110.40 51.42.716.00
L17-1944 2 Invoice TOWER/WELL LOAN 10/01/2019 12,937.89 51.42.720.01

Total IL EPA (119716): 81,048.29

INDUSTRIAL AUTOMATION CO. (120752)
22-59607 1 Invoice PUMP REPLACEMENT 09/19/2019 3,495.00 52.43.850.15

Total INDUSTRIAL AUTOMATION CO. (120752): 3,495.00

INSITE INSTRUMENTATION GROUP, INC. (120053)
191110 1 Invoice SEWER PLANT SENSOR 09/17/2019 3,264.00 52.43.850.15

Total INSITE INSTRUMENTATION GROUP, INC. (120053): 3,264.00

J & R SUPPLY INCORPORATED (951)
1909945 1 Invoice STREET PAVING MATERI 09/17/2019 81.50 41.61.860.02
1910270 1 Invoice WATER BREAK DECATUR  09/26/2019 1,178.00 51.42.929.00
1910525 1 Invoice HYDRANT REPLACEMEN 10/03/2019 774.00 51.42.831.07
1910631 1 Invoice STORM SEWER 10/07/2019 180.00 01.41.514.06

Total J & R SUPPLY INCORPORATED (951): 2,213.50

JEFFERSON FIRE & SAFETY (120511)
083119 1 Invoice EQUIPMENT FOR NEW A 08/31/2019 3,286.98 22.22.840.00

Total JEFFERSON FIRE & SAFETY (120511): 3,286.98

JL TECH, LLC (120693)
2341 1 Invoice COMPUTER WORK 10/01/2019 80.00 01.21.512.00
2346 1 Invoice FIX BACKUP CAMERA DO 10/01/2019 120.00 01.21.512.00
2348 1 Invoice COMPUTER WORK 10/01/2019 160.00 01.21.512.00

Page 95 of 101



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     4
Input Dates: 9/24/2019 - 10/31/2019 Oct 10, 2019  08:22AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total JL TECH, LLC (120693): 360.00

JO CARROLL ENERGY, INC. (397)
100119 1 Invoice STREET LIGHTS 10/01/2019 5,257.39 15.41.572.00
100119 2 Invoice LIFT STATION/ELECTRIC 10/01/2019 116.38 52.43.850.09
100119 3 Invoice POLICE/ELECTRIC 10/01/2019 728.38 01.21.571.01
100119 4 Invoice EMS/ELECTRIC 10/01/2019 134.47 12.10.571.01
100119 5 Invoice PARKS/ELECTRIC 10/01/2019 89.02 17.52.571.01
100119 6 Invoice FLOOD/ELECTRIC 10/01/2019 245.63 20.25.576.01
100119 7 Invoice FIRE/ELECTRIC 10/01/2019 514.88 22.22.576.01
100119 8 Invoice TURNER HALL/ELECTRIC 10/01/2019 1,105.55 58.54.571.01
100119 9 Invoice WELCOME SIGNS/ELECT 10/01/2019 35.59 01.41.571.01

Total JO CARROLL ENERGY, INC. (397): 8,227.29

JO DAVIESS CTY SHERIFF (116)
100119 1 Invoice CITY SHARE OF OFFICE 10/01/2019 200.12 01.21.538.00
100119 2 Invoice RADIO SERVICE 10/01/2019 100.00 22.22.538.00

Total JO DAVIESS CTY SHERIFF (116): 300.12

KEEFFER, JANELLE (120130)
100819 1 Invoice ADEVERTISING/MARKETI 10/08/2019 40.00 58.54.553.00
100819 2 Invoice DISPLAYS/TURNER HALL 10/08/2019 23.00 58.54.553.00

Total KEEFFER, JANELLE (120130): 63.00

KERN KAISER, MARY ANN (120751)
100819 1 Invoice DAMAGE DEPOSIT REFU 10/08/2019 200.00 58.54.929.00

Total KERN KAISER, MARY ANN (120751): 200.00

KIEFER AQUATICS (120674)
692207 2 Adjustmen POOL UNIFORMS 05/03/2019 281.00- 59.55.691.04
722678 2 Adjustmen POOL UNIFORMS 06/03/2019 198.50- 59.55.691.04

Total KIEFER AQUATICS (120674): 479.50-

KUHN, BRIAN  (236)
100819 1 Invoice CLOTHING 10/08/2019 175.31 01.41.579.02

Total KUHN, BRIAN  (236): 175.31

LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC. (627)
9307042576 1 Invoice MISC. 09/24/2019 271.92 01.41.652.00
9307042576 2 Invoice SUPPLIES 09/24/2019 230.56 01.41.652.00
9307042576 3 Invoice TRAFFIC MARKINGS 09/24/2019 118.12 01.41.514.01
9307049769 1 Invoice ST. MARKINGS 09/26/2019 86.67 01.41.514.01

Total LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC. (627): 707.27

LEXISNEXIS RISK SOLUTIONS (376)
1343464-201 1 Invoice INVESTIGATION PROGR 09/30/2019 35.50 01.21.652.03

Page 96 of 101



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     5
Input Dates: 9/24/2019 - 10/31/2019 Oct 10, 2019  08:22AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total LEXISNEXIS RISK SOLUTIONS (376): 35.50

LOUIE'S TRENCHING SERVICE (127)
4313 1 Invoice FOUNTAIN 09/25/2019 4,015.00 17.52.870.02
4314 1 Invoice CURB GUTTER 09/25/2019 3,280.00 01.41.863.18
4315 1 Invoice VALVE REPLACEMENT 09/25/2019 4,300.00 51.42.831.09
4316 1 Invoice HYDRANT REPLACEMEN 09/25/2019 4,155.35 51.42.831.07

Total LOUIE'S TRENCHING SERVICE (127): 15,750.35

MARKET HOUSE TAVERN (77)
5646-28 1 Invoice MEALS/CHIEF'S MEETIN 09/26/2019 192.00 01.21.549.00

Total MARKET HOUSE TAVERN (77): 192.00

MEDICAL ASSOCIATES CLINIC (1120)
116563 1 Invoice PHYSICAL 10/01/2019 80.00 22.22.929.00

Total MEDICAL ASSOCIATES CLINIC (1120): 80.00

MIDWEST BUSINESS PRODUCTS (38)
25569008 1 Invoice COPIES 10/01/2019 298.27 01.13.579.00
25569008 2 Invoice COPIES 10/01/2019 375.22 01.13.579.00
25569008 3 Invoice KIP 10/01/2019 244.26 52.43.549.00

789568 1 Invoice COPIER USAGE 10/04/2019 277.49 01.21.512.03

Total MIDWEST BUSINESS PRODUCTS (38): 1,195.24

MNS CONSTRUCTION, INC. (118877)
14741 1 Invoice WATERWORKS SIDEWAL 09/19/2019 9,892.82 01.41.830.01
14742 1 Invoice STREET IMPROVEMENT 09/19/2019 11,500.00 41.61.860.02
14798 1 Invoice WWTP SLUDGE REMOVA 10/02/2019 1,200.00 52.43.929.00

Total MNS CONSTRUCTION, INC. (118877): 22,592.82

MONTGOMERY TRUCKING (133)
195191 1 Invoice REFUSE HANDLING CON 10/01/2019 14,519.49 13.44.540.04
195191 2 Invoice RECYCLING CONTRACT 10/01/2019 5,011.93 13.44.540.00
195191 3 Invoice DUMPSTER RENT 10/01/2019 60.00 13.44.544.03
195191 4 Invoice DUMPSTER DISPOSAL F 10/01/2019 129.50 01.41.573.00
195716 1 Invoice DUMPSTER RENTAL 10/01/2019 45.00 22.22.652.00

Total MONTGOMERY TRUCKING (133): 19,765.92

MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS - STARCOM (119812)
100119 1 Invoice MONTHLY RATE FOR STA 10/01/2019 10.00 01.21.549.00

Total MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS - STARCOM (119812): 10.00

MURPHY GARDENS (120253)
477818 1 Invoice GRANT PARK FLOWERS 10/06/2019 635.00 17.52.517.03

Page 97 of 101



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     6
Input Dates: 9/24/2019 - 10/31/2019 Oct 10, 2019  08:22AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total MURPHY GARDENS (120253): 635.00

NAPA AUTO PARTS (79)
309791 1 Invoice MISC. VEHICLES 10/01/2019 17.37 01.41.613.12

Total NAPA AUTO PARTS (79): 17.37

NICOR (F) (118924)
100119 1 Invoice POLICE-GAS 10/01/2019 81.98 01.21.571.05
100119 2 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS-GAS 10/01/2019 111.47 01.41.571.05
100119 3 Invoice FIRE DEPARTMENT-GAS 10/01/2019 117.56 22.22.571.05

Total NICOR (F) (118924): 311.01

O'HARE, MAGGIE (120750)
100819 1 Invoice DEPOSIT REFUND 10/08/2019 200.00 58.54.929.00

Total O'HARE, MAGGIE (120750): 200.00

OLDENBURG, MATTHEW J. (120082)
093019 1 Invoice TRAINING/CONFERENCE 09/30/2019 87.69 01.16.562.00

Total OLDENBURG, MATTHEW J. (120082): 87.69

PERFECTION LAWN CARE (119990)
4013 1 Invoice GRANT PARK MAINTENA 10/01/2019 300.00 17.52.870.04

Total PERFECTION LAWN CARE (119990): 300.00

RIVER CITY PAVING (56)
4300017536 1 Invoice HOT MIX 09/30/2019 1,248.21 15.41.614.03

Total RIVER CITY PAVING (56): 1,248.21

SECURITY PRODUCTS OF DUBUQUE (119890)
247-12766 1 Invoice ALARM MONITORING 09/28/2019 27.00 01.13.552.00

Total SECURITY PRODUCTS OF DUBUQUE (119890): 27.00

SEGER, KELSEY & ADAM (120753)
100119 1 Invoice DAMAGE DEPOSIT REFU 10/01/2019 200.00 58.54.929.00

Total SEGER, KELSEY & ADAM (120753): 200.00

SIGNCRAFT SCREENPRINT, INC. (555)
352755M 1 Invoice SIGNS 10/07/2019 40.00 01.41.652.04

573386 1 Invoice SIGNS 10/08/2019 56.13 01.41.652.04

Total SIGNCRAFT SCREENPRINT, INC. (555): 96.13

STEPHENSON SERVICE CO. (119230)
100119 1 Invoice FUEL 10/01/2019 1,794.91 01.41.655.00

Page 98 of 101



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     7
Input Dates: 9/24/2019 - 10/31/2019 Oct 10, 2019  08:22AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total STEPHENSON SERVICE CO. (119230): 1,794.91

T & T ELECTRONICS (120055)
2277 1 Invoice TV RECYCLING 09/30/2019 125.00 13.44.929.00

Total T & T ELECTRONICS (120055): 125.00

TECHNOLOGY MANAGEMENT REV FUND (120601)
T2005555 1 Invoice MONTHLY CHARGE FOR  09/16/2019 265.62 01.21.542.00

Total TECHNOLOGY MANAGEMENT REV FUND (120601): 265.62

TOP NOTCH PLUMBING, HEATING  (625)
24028 1 Invoice ANNUAL FURNACE INSP 10/04/2019 208.80 01.13.511.01

Total TOP NOTCH PLUMBING, HEATING  (625): 208.80

TOTALFUNDS BY HASLER (119730)
100119 1 Invoice POSTAGE 10/01/2019 500.00 01.13.551.00

TOTALFUNDS BY HASLER (119730): 500.00

TRI-STATE PORTA POTTY, INC. (908)
7390 1 Invoice PORTA POTTY RENTAL 09/17/2019 215.00 17.52.579.01

Total TRI-STATE PORTA POTTY, INC. (908): 215.00

UNIFORM DEN EAST, INC. (119474)
63321 1 Invoice NEW BODY ARMOR 09/28/2019 1,600.00 01.21.914.00

Total UNIFORM DEN EAST, INC. (119474): 1,600.00

UPS STORE GALENA, THE (1260)
091519 1 Invoice UPS SHIPPING 09/15/2019 21.64 01.21.551.00

Total UPS STORE GALENA, THE (1260): 21.64

US CELLULAR (92)
100119 1 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS/CELL PH 10/01/2019 36.95 01.41.552.00
100119 2 Invoice ADMIN/CELL PHONE 10/01/2019 36.95 01.11.552.00
100119 3 Invoice MORAN/CELL PHONE 10/01/2019 19.00 01.261.0
100119 4 Invoice POLICE/CELL PHONES 10/01/2019 83.89 01.21.552.01
100119 5 Invoice HUNTINGTON/CELL PHO 10/01/2019 36.95 01.216.0
100119 6 Invoice TONY/CELL PHONE 10/01/2019 43.59 01.261.0
100119 7 Invoice POOL IPADS 10/01/2019 148.22 59.55.552.00

Total US CELLULAR (92): 405.55

VERIZON WIRELESS (316)
100119 1 Invoice PAY & DISPLAY 10/01/2019 75.03 53.48.555.00
100119 2 Invoice VERIZON JET PACK FOR  10/01/2019 38.01 01.21.652.03

Page 99 of 101



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     8
Input Dates: 9/24/2019 - 10/31/2019 Oct 10, 2019  08:22AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total VERIZON WIRELESS (316): 113.04

WEBER PAPER COMPANY (40)
077642A 1 Invoice SOAP 09/09/2019 80.20 01.13.654.01
077644A 1 Invoice SOAP 09/09/2019 120.30 01.13.654.00

078065 1 Invoice WIPES 09/20/2019 94.60 58.54.654.01
078373 1 Invoice TOILET PAPER 09/19/2019 74.62 58.54.654.01
078374 1 Invoice SUPPLIES 09/19/2019 74.62 01.41.652.00
078430 1 Invoice GARGAGE BAGS 09/20/2019 77.98 58.54.654.01
078612 1 Invoice TOILET PAPER & SOAP 09/25/2019 319.52 01.13.654.00
078614 1 Invoice SOAP & TOILET PAPER 09/25/2019 382.12 01.13.654.01
078616 1 Invoice SUPPLIES 09/25/2019 149.24 17.52.652.00

Total WEBER PAPER COMPANY (40): 1,373.20

WEX BANK (119104)
100119 1 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS-GAS 10/01/2019 1,069.71 01.41.655.00
100119 2 Invoice PARKS-GAS 10/01/2019 306.96 17.52.655.03
100119 3 Invoice POLICE-GAS 10/01/2019 1,453.32 01.21.655.00
100119 4 Invoice BUILDING-GAS 10/01/2019 25.54 01.46.655.00
100119 5 Invoice FIRE-GAS 10/01/2019 307.88 22.22.655.00

Total WEX BANK (119104): 3,163.41

WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. (119359)
100819 1 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS JANITOR 10/08/2019 110.00 01.41.511.01
100919 1 Invoice CLEANING SERVICES/TU 10/09/2019 900.00 58.54.537.01

Total WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. (119359): 1,010.00

WHKS & CO. (119367)
39836 1 Invoice GEAR ST. CONSTRUCTIO 09/23/2019 4,058.36 15.41.850.00

Total WHKS & CO. (119367): 4,058.36

WUEBBEN, TIM (119934)
100819 1 Invoice BOOTS 10/08/2019 151.50 01.21.471.15

Total WUEBBEN, TIM (119934): 151.50

ZARNOTH BRUSH WORKS INC. (212)
0177265 1 Invoice SWEEPER 09/26/2019 274.00 01.41.613.11

Total ZARNOTH BRUSH WORKS INC. (212): 274.00

Grand Totals: 617,801.09

Report GL Period Summary

Vendor number hash: 5921115
Vendor number hash - split: 7482370

Page 100 of 101



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     9
Input Dates: 9/24/2019 - 10/31/2019 Oct 10, 2019  08:22AM

Terms Description Invoice Amount Net Invoice Amount

Total number of invoices: 106
Total number of transactions: 153

Terms Description Invoice Amount Net Invoice Amount

Open Terms 617,801.09 617,801.09

Grand Totals: 617,801.09 617,801.09

Page 101 of 101


	00.00 Agenda 10.15.19
	01.0406 Minutes cc092319
	02.0407 Budget Amendment BA20-06
	BA20-06
	Master List FY20

	03.0408 Balloon Glow
	04.0409 Hunting Boundary Revision
	101519d
	School Section Hunting Site Mailer Update 10OCT2019

	05.0322 309 Franklin St. Appeal
	092319c
	309 Franklin St. House Pic with Colors
	04.0322 309 Franklin Appeal
	309 Franklin St Appeal Memo 7-28-17
	309 Franklin CA Appeal 7-28-17
	Blue Orchid and Violet Stone
	Thundercloud Grey, Deep Silver, and Sweet Daphne
	309 Franklin St. Agenda 7-6-17
	309 Franklin CA 7-6-17
	House photos with CA colors 7-6-17
	Paint Proposal
	Exhibit #1 Minutes Aug. 18th
	Exhibit #5 Minutes Sept. 1st
	309 Franklin Ball State 1
	309 Franklin Ball State 2



	06.0390 624 Spring Rezoning
	07.0391 Adult-Use Cannabis
	08.0410 New Truck Bids
	09.0411 Surplus Property
	10.0412 Water Rate Study
	101519b
	Rates Exh B
	Rates Exh C
	Water Fund 5 Year Budget

	11.0413 CFPS Amendment
	12.0414 Insurance Renewal
	101519c
	IMLRMA 2019 Ordinance

	13.0415 Warrants 10.15.19



